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JN.I)EPEND;ENTAUDITOR'S REPORT 

' chbwcpa. c;om 

'' - I 

. '· . 
We p.ave 

�
.audit�d the accompan)'fug :fuianC;f� statem�n� of �e go��pnn.entar a�tivities, the: business-type activiti6s,, �e . 

aggregate discretely preserited,component units; .each majo:t:fund, and the aggr.egate reID.a.iniJ?.g fund infofniation 01;'.1;he,Bath I • 

· Charter Township, Michigan; as c:if·and for t:Q'.e ye� ended December 31, �015,. and the related notes to the fulancial 
statements; which cci:IJ.ectively comprise the Bath Chartck.township, Michigan's basic financial statements as fuited ih tb.e 
table of contei;ttS. 

· · · · 1 

, . Manag'ement's R.'eSponslbility for the Finani:ial$.t�tements 
·· 

·' . L 

. ��getiient is r�sponsi�le for the pr'eparatiorl a.ud fair presentation of' fu��e :financii{ statements �. accord3.nce with 
. accouri.ting principle$ generally ac�epted in the Unite� States .of America; tliis inclb.des the dcrsign:, implem,entatiori; and 

. mfilntenaD.c� pf irj.tenial _control reh�vant to>tlie 1prepan1.tion and fafr presentation Qf finaticial statementstnatar� :free from 
materiaj: J$sq1tem¢nt, ·whe1;hei.d�e to lraud or erroi:. 

. ' . . . .  

Audttot1s Rqpo�sibilitj . · • ··· 

Our responsibility .is· tq express opntlons on these financial statementS based on otir _audit: We conciucted our .audit in 
accordance with atiditlllg standards generally aCCf1p��ci in the United States of�erica and the stan<Jards applicable to 

_ :fuiiu�.ci!tl audits conJawt;d in 9ovet:nment Auditing Standards, issued by the'Coinptr()lle;r General_o�,theIJnitedStates:' Those. 
• standards requ.iie tliat we.planand perform tJ;ie audit to obtain reasonable asstita.n,ceabout wheth�:i;- the financial state:r;I).ents, 
are, free from material miSstatement. · · ' · · · ' · · 

· · · · · · · 
' -1 - ' 

An �udit. invol�es :performing p;rocedm�i? to obtain. audit evi�ei;i:ce abouHlie. irmouuts ·an& cjisclosuies ,in the .:finan�ial 
statements.<The procedures s¢lected dep({nd on the auditor's judgment, induding the .a:ssessme:Q.tof the risk of :inateiial. 
misstatement of the fuancial statements, whether dile tQ• fi:'aud ·Or error. Jn maI0ng.c.thOSe rl�J{ ass�ssment.s/the auditor 
considers internal control relevant io the entity's preparation· �d fair pres�ntatiOn of tb,e' :Pnancial statements in order(to . 
designatrdit proce'dures that arl} appropnate in the circwnstances, but not fqr ihe purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness Clftlie entify's intemifrControl. l}ccordingly, we.expFeSS no, such opinion. An audit also includes, eval�tingthe 
appropriateness Of ac'Comiting polfoies us.ed an<,l the reasonabJeness of sigp:ificantaecounting• estiinates made by mattagement,. 
as well asevalua9ng the ov;erall preserlt�tion qfthe fin:ancial;.statements. . ' . . .. . . , . . 

- - - � . ,- I- , 

, We believ� that the audit �Vidence we have obtartled is· sufficient ru;_d appropriate to provide a basis.for ci� audit o�inimis: 
I I 

- c ' -
-

1 1• ' ' 1' ' ' ' , ' _ :cT,, ) '' < ' '. 
� >,- ' > • 

0 0', r '  ' > 
, · ' '/ 

Opinfons '� ·· 

. rP. cilir · opinion; ,the· fui�cial statements. referred to. abov� ·present fa.lrly; ·
ill . all material respects, 1;he rrspepti�e- financ�al 

· · ·position: of the goverm:ilentaLactivities, �e busine�s-tYJ>e a,sti:vlties, e!!-ch.tiiajQr fund, and the aggr¢gate remaining fiind 
.. mfortnation of the BatJ.f Charter Tovrfiship, Michigan, as of Dece�bel,' 31, 201� •. and the respective changes in "firumciaL 

·' · ',p�sjtio�, and, wher� applicable, cash flows thereOf for' th.e. yeat then. ended in accordanc� with. aw>Un.ting �'rjri�iples gel).,eraUy 
. accepted in the. United States pf A)neric:a. · • • · ·. . . . ·· . . , . . 

· 
·· � ' , . . . i • . . . , . , . - - . . ' ' t , ' -' · .' 

. "f!;mpliasts !Jf aMatt(!r . 
. ·

As descnbed :in Note' J to the, financiaLstatemerits, .t:he . .Township adopted th� provisiorls of Government-<Accounting 
StandardS Bo!ll"d (GASB) Statement. 6& "Accounting and Fi"'nancial reporting for Pe.,isioris" !iJld. G.t\SB 7i "Pension 
·rransitibhfor

_
Contribution,S made Subsequent.to the Measurement ])ate �An"hnendment.o/GASB S,tatementNo; 68", ,The· 

implerµentation of these pronou:IleementS had eft'ects pn the beginnlllg net posWoD:, defer,red inflows 'an� .deferred· outfiow,s. 
_Our opmions are not �odified with respect t9 these ma1fers. 

- ia- � , .. 
Thomas S., Condon /Donna] Heclit / Stephen W: �isher I .Jason M Wad(: , 

. �: 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and . 
analysis on pages ii-vi and budgetary comparison and retirement system information on pages 31�35 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting .Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting fo+ placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain lirriited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about . the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Bath 
Charter Township, Michigan's basic financial statements; The combining and individual nonmajorfund financial statements, 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

This supplementary ir].formation. is the responsibility of management and was derived from and n;late directly to. the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to. the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the· supplementary information 
d�scribed above and listed in the table. of contents is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June J, 2016, on our consideration 
of the Bath Charter Township, Michigan's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose; of that ;report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
µot to provide an opinion on internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditihg Standards in considering the Bath Charter Township, Michigan's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Hillsdale, Michigan 
June 1, 2016 

Certified Public Ac;countants 

- ib -



Bath Charter Township 

MANAGEMENT'S D I SCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31 , 201 5 

The d iscussion and analysis of the Townsh ip's financial performance provides an overview of the Township's 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31 , 201 5 .  P lease read it in conjunction with the 
Townsh ip's financial statements. 

Financial H ighl ights 

As discussed i n  further detai l  i n  th is d iscussion and analysis, the fol lowing represents the most s ign ificant 
financial h igh l ights for the year ended December 3 1 , 201 5 :  

• Total net position related to the Townsh ip's governmental and bus iness-type activities increased 
$523, 795 . 

• Total fund  balances related to the Townsh ip's governmental funds i ncreased by $1 1 1 ,548. 
• I nvestment earnings decreased approximately $285,541  from the p rior year. The decrease is the resu lt 

of fluctuations in market interest rates and changes i n  market value of investments held by the 
Townsh ip .  

• Capital assets , net of depreciation , decreased approximately $203,322 from the prior year. The majority 
of this decrease is related to current year depreciation expense. 

Using this Annual  Report 

This d iscussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Bath Charter Township's basic fi nancial 
statements. The Township's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1 )  government-wide 
financial  statements ,  2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
conta ins other supp lementary i nformation ,  i n  addit ion to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide F inancial Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities provide 
information about the activities of Bath Charter Township as a whole and present a longer-term view of the 
Townsh ip's finances. This longer-term view uses the accrual basis of accounting  so that it can measure the 
cost of p rovid ing services du ring the cu rrent year, and whether the taxpayers have funded the fu l l  cost of 
provid ing  government services . 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distingu ish functions of the Townsh ip that are principal ly 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover a l l  or a s ign ificant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities) .  I n  addition ,  both government-wide financial statements inc lude a column for t he  Township's 
d iscretely presented component un it .  

Fund F inancial Statements. The fund financial statements present a s hort-term view; they tel l  us  how the 
taxpayers' resources were spent du ring the year, as wel l  as how much is avai lable for future spend ing .  Fund 
financial statements a lso report the operations of Bath Charter Township i n  more detai l  than the government­
wide financial statements by provid ing information about the Township's most s ign ificant funds.  The fiduciary 
fund statements provide financial i nformation about activities for which Bath Charter Township acts solely as a 
trustee or  agent for the benefit of those outside the government. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essential ly the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in  the government-wide financial statements. However, un l ike the government-wide 
financial statements ,  governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendab le resources , as wel l  as on balances of spendable resources avai lable at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information may be usefu l in evaluating a government's near-term financing requ irements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is usefu l to compare the information presented for governmental funds with s imi lar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements . By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues , expend itures , and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconci l iation to faci l itate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities . 

- ii -



Bath Charter Townsh ip 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  

December 31, 2015 

Using this Annual Report - continued 

Bath Charter Township maintains nine (9) ind ividual governmental funds. I nformation is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in  the governmental fund statement of revenues, expend it u res, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund ,  which is considered to be a major fund. Data for the other 
governmental funds are combined into a s ingle,  aggregated presentation .  I nd ividual  fund data for each of these 
nonmajor g overnmental funds is provided in the form of combin ing statements in the Other Supp lementary 
I nformatio n  section of th is report. 

The Townsh ip  adopts an annual  appropriated b udget for its General Fund and Special Revenue Funds.  A 
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compl iance with this 
budget. 

Proprietary Funds. Bath, Charter Township maintains three (3) proprietary funds.  Enterprise Funds are used 
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
The Townsh ip  uses E nterprise Funds to accou nt for its sewer system and water system activity. Internal 
Service Funds are an accounting  device used to accum u late and a l locate costs interna l ly among the Townsh ip's 
various fun ctions. Bath Charter Township uses an I nternal SeNice Fund to account for potent ial  future 
employee s ick and vacation payouts. Because the seNices provided by employees of the Township 
p redominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, the activities of the I nterna l  SeNice 
Fund have been inc luded with i n  governmenta l activities i n  the government-wide financial statements. 

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary Funds are used to account  for resources held for the benefit of parties o utside the 
government. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected i n  the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not avai lable to support the Township's own programs. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The n otes p rovide additional information  that is essential to a fu l l  
u nderstand ing  of  the data provided in  the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to  the 
financial statements can be fou nd on pages 12-30 of this report. 

Other Information. In addition to the bas ic financial statements and accompanying notes , this report also 
presents certain requ i red supp lementary information ,  such as this MD&A and the Genera l  Fund b udgetary 
compariso n  schedule .  Combin ing statements referred to earl ier in  connection with nonmajor governmental 
funds are p resented as other supplementary i nformation .  

The Township as a Whole 

The fol lowin g  table shows, in  a condensed format, a comparative analysis of the net assets as of December 31, 
2015 and 2014: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals 

December 31, December 31, December 31, 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Assets 

Current and other assets $ 6,242,069 $ 5,977,964 $ 6,012,012 $ 5,792,837 $ 12,254,081 $ 11,770,801 
Capital assets, net 3,820,774 3,758,119 9,953,262 10,219,239 13,774,036 13,977,358 

Total assets 10,062,843 9,736,083 15,965,274 16,012,076 26,028, 117 25,748,159 

Deferred outflows of resources 203,899 135,526 48,750 54,167 252,649 189,693 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 390,435 361,959 908,178 864,665 1,298,613 1,226,624 
Noncurrent liabilities 1,381,035 1,310,268 7,003,665 7,430,696 8,384,700 8,740,964 

Total liabilities 1,771,470 1,672,227 7,911,843 8,295,361 9,683,313 9,967,588 

Deferred inflows of resources 2,726,531 2,623,137 2,726,531 2,623,137 

- i i i  -



Bath Charter Township 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

The Township as a Whole - continued 

Net position 

Net investment in capital assets $ 
Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net position $ 

Governmental Activities 

December 31, 

3,480,774 $ 3,324,775 
174,673 81,586 

2,113,294 2,169,884 

5,768,741 $ 5,576,245 

Business-type Activities 

December 31, 
2015 2014 

$ 4,634,126 $ 4,478,072 

3,468,055 3,292,810 

$ 8,102,181 $ 7,770,882 

Totals 

December 31, 
2015 2014 

$ 8, 114,900 $ 7,802,847 
174,673 81,586 

5,581,349 5,462,694 

$ 13,870,922 $ 13,347,127 

Net position may serve over t ime as a usefu l ind icator of a government's financial pos ition.  Bath Charter 
Township's assets exceeded l iab i l ities by $13,870,922 as of December 31, 2015. A sign ificant portion of the 
Township's net position (58 percent) reflects its i nvestment i n  capital assets (e.g . ,  land, bu i l d ings, equ ipment) ; 
less any related debt used to acqu i re those assets that is sti l l  outstanding . The Townsh ip uses these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens ;  consequently, these assets are not ava i lable for future spend ing .  
Although the  Township's i nvestment i n  capital assets is reported net of  related debt, i t  shou ld be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, s ince the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to l iqu idate these l iab i l it ies. 

An add it ional port ion of the Townsh ip's net position (less than 2 percent) represent resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used . The remain ing  balance of u nrestricted net position ($5,581,349) 
may be used to meet the Township's ongoing obl igations to citizens and cred itors . 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Township is able to report positive balances i n  al l  three categories of net 
position , both for the government as a whole, as wel l  as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 

The Townsh ip's net position increased by $523,795 during the current year as d iscussed below (Note: The 2014 
columns are prior to the implementation of GASB Statement No.  68 wh ich was effective for fiscal years 
beg inn ing after June 15, 2014). 

Revenue 

Program revenue: 

Charges for services 

Operating grants and contributions 

Capital grants and contributions 

General revenue: 

Property taices 

State shared revenue 

Investment earnings 

Equity interest in SCCMUA 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenue 

Program Expenses 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Recreation and cultural 

Sewer system 

Water system 

Interest on long-term debt 

Total program expenses 

Change in Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

December 31, 

$ 655,690 $ 654,232 
182,377 198,134 

2,395,682 2,281,093 
906,884 901,471 

77,054 288,913 

54,936 42,313 

4,272,623 4,366, 156 

1,340,041 1,293,513 
1,971,460 1,950,167 

606,397 588,397 
140,757 114,759 

21,472 25, 121 

4,080,127 3,971,957 

$ 192,496 $ 394, 199 

- iv -

Business-type Activities 

December 31, 

$ 1,454,894 $ 1,470,109 

604,294 220,414 

23,690 
109,766 

71,321 

2,263,965 

1,926,666 
6,000 

1,932,666 

97,372 
111,756 

78,417 

1,978,068 

1,869,403 
6,000 

1,875,403 

$ 331,299 $ 102,665 

Totals 

December 31, 
2015 2014 

$ 2,110,584 $ 2,124,341 
182,377 198, 134 
604,294 220,414 

2,395,682 2,281,093 
906,884 901,471 
100,744 386,285 
109,766 111,756 
126,257 120,730 

6,536,588 6,344,224 

1,340,041 1,293,513 
1,971,460 1,950,167 

606,397 588,397 
140,757 114,759 

1,926,666 1,869,403 
6,000 6,000 

21,472 25, 121 

6,012,793 5,847,360 

$ 523,795 $ 496,864 



Bath Charter Township 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2015 

Governmental Activities 

Governmental activit ies increased the Townsh ip's net position by $192,496 during fiscal year 2015. Key 
elements of th is i ncrease are as fol lows : 

The Township 's governmental activities' reven ues totaled $4,272,623 with the greatest revenue source being 
property taxes. Tax revenues increased approximately $114,589. I nvestment earn ings decreased $211,859 
and state shared reven ue increased approximately $5,413 du ring 2015. 

The Townsh ip incurred expenses of $4,080, 127 during the year which was $108,170 more than the prior year. 
The majority of governmental expense is associated with the pub l ic  safety function ,  which inc ludes fi re and 
pol ice services . 

Bus iness-type Activities 

Business-type activities increased the Township's net position by $331,299 during fiscal year 2015. The increase 
in net position was partial ly due to an increase in tap-in-fees for development with in the Township .  The majority 
(64%) of the revenue of the business-type activities is generated through user charges. 

The Township's Funds 

Governmental Funds. The analys is of the Township's major funds begins on page 3, fol lowing the 
government-wide financial statements. The fund financial statements provide detai led information about the 
most sign ificant funds ,  not Bath Charter Township as a whole. Bath Charter Townsh ip's Board of Trustees 
creates funds to help manage money for specific purposes. The Township's major governmental fu nd for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 was the General Fund .  

The Genera l  Fund pays for most of  the Township's governmental services . The most s ign ificant service 
provided during the fiscal year was for pub l ic safety, which incurred expenditures of $1,778,542 for the fiscal 
year. Pub l ic  Safety services are partial ly supported by a pol ice and fi re mi l lage, which is recorded in the 
General Fund .  

Proprietary F unds. The Township's proprietary funds provide the same type of  information  found in  the 
government-wide financial statements ,  but in more detai l .  

U n restricted net assets of the Sewer System Fund and the Water System Fund at the end of the year amounted 
to $3,333,489 and $134,566, respectively. Net position for the Sewer System Fund increased by $324,553 and 
the net position for the Water System Fund increased by $6, 7 46 for the fiscal year. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the fiscal year, the Townsh ip Board made necessary budget adjustments to fund 
u nanticipated expend itures during the year. Budget amendments were made to recogn ize d ifferences in 
anticipated reven ues , to reign in  and real locate expenditures, and delay anticipated capital p rojects . Budgetary­
basis revenues and other financing sources were increased by $113,248, primarily to adjust for anticipated 
refund ,  rebates, and other revenues.  Actual revenues came in $162,620 less than the amended budget. This 
deficit is due to refunds, rebates, and other revenues coming in  lower than anticipated . B udgetary basis 
expenditures and other financing uses were increased $214, 140 to adj ust for i ncreased pub l ic safety costs and 
anticipated operating transfers to other funds .  Actual expend itures and other financing uses came in  $239,791 
u nder budget, due primarily to tighter budgetary contro l .  

- v -



Bath Charter Township 

MANAGEMENTS D I SCUSSION AND ANALYSI S  

December 31, 2015 

Capital Asset and Debt Admin istration 

Capital Assets. At the end of the fiscal year, the Township had approximately $23,153,412 i nvested i n  a broad 
range of capital assets, includ ing bu i ld ings,  land, equ ipment, and uti l ities . I n  add it ion ,  the Township has made 
certain  investments in roads and drains with in  Bath Charter Township .  These assets are not reported in Bath 
Charter Township's fund statements because under Michigan law these roads and drains are the property of the 
Cl inton County Road and Drain Commissions, respectively. Refer to Note D on pages 21 and 22 for further 
detai ls related to the Townsh ip's capital assets. 

Long-term Debt. The Township made principal payments on existing ob l igations in the amount of $513,344. 
The carrying amount of the Township's obl igation for compensated absences decreased by $4,410. Refer to 
Note E on pages 22 and 23 for further detai ls related to the Townsh ip's long-term debt. 

Current Economic Factors 

Bath Charter Townsh ip cont inues to mainta in  a stab le financial outlook d ue to conservative budgeting and fiscal 
management and to a sign ificant g rowth cu rve in new res idential and commercial construction .  In add ition ,  Bath 
Townsh ip's tax base, though  lowered , was not h it as severely by the Great Recession as were many 
comm u n ities throughout Mich igan . 

Th is is not to say that Bath Township does not face some chal lenges . Wh i le Township growth has been 
sign ificant for more than a decade,  the new residents represent additiona l  demands for services and 
infrastructu re improvements , particu larly i n  the san itary sewer system, which requ i res add itional resources. 

Contacting the Township's Management 

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers , customers ,  and investors with a genera l  
overview of the Townsh ip's fi nances and demonstrate the Township's accou ntabi l ity for the money i t  receives . I f  
you have questions about this report or need add itional i nformation ,  we welcome you to contact the Township 
Superintendent or Treasurer at the Townsh ip  Hal l .  
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Bath Charter Township 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31 , 2015 

Prima!l'. Government 
Governmental Business-type Component 

Activities Activities Total Unit !DDA} 
ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,189,596 $ 1,147,846 $ 3,337,442 $ 384 
Investments 1,392,092 1,127,064 2,519,156 
Receivables 1,247,556 360,205 1,607,761 
Due from other governmental units 151,667 151,667 
Prepaids 85,653 85,653 

Total current assets 5,066,564 2,635,115 7,701,679 384 

Noncurrent assets 
Investments 1,175,505 282,719 1,458,224 
Investment in SCCMUA 3,094,178 3,094,178 
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,136,401 286,887 1,423,288 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,684,373 9,666,375 12,350,748 

Total noncurrent assets 4,996,279 13,330,159 18,326,438 -0-

TOTAL ASSETS 10,062,843 15,965,274 26,028,117 384 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred charge on refunding 48,750 48,750 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 203,899 203,899 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 203,899 48,750 252,649 -0-

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 152,392 83,194 235,586 
Accrued wages 29,224 29,224 
Accrued liabilities 18,673 18,673 
Accrued interest payable 3,222 45,807 49,029 
Unearned revenue 352,146 352,146 
Current portion of compensated absences 126,924 126,924 
Current portion of long-term debt 60,000 427,031 487,031 

Total current liabilities 390,435 908,178 1,298,613 -0-

Noncurrent liabilities 
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 280,000 7,003,665 7,283,665 
Net pension liability 1, 101,035 1,101,035 

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,381,035 7,003,665 8,384,700 -0-

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,771,470 7,911,843 9,683,313 -0-

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Property taxes levied for subsequent year 2,726,531 2,726,531 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 3,480,774 4,634,126 8,114,900 
Restricted for public safety 125,422 125,422 
Restricted for street lights 49,251 49,251 
Unrestricted 2,113,294 3,468,055 5,581,349 384 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 5,768,741 $ 8,102,181 $ 13,870,922 $ 384 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Bath Charter Township 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITI ES 

Year Ended December 31 , 201 5 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capital Grants 

Charges for Grants and and 
Functions/Programs Ex�enses Services Contributions Contributions 
Primary Government 

Governmental activities 
General government $ 1,340,041 417,379 82,417 $ -
Public safety 1,971,460 200,568 2,394 -
Public works 606,397 - 95,847 -
Recreation and culture 140,757 37,743 1,719 -
Interest expense 21,472 - - -

Total governmental activities 4,080,127 655,690 182,377 -0-

Business-type activities 
Sewer system 1,926,666 1,449,694 - 604,294 
Water system 6,000 5,200 - -

Total business-type activities 1,932,666 1,454,894 -0- 604,294 

Total primary government $ 6,012,793 $ 2, 110,584 $ 182,377 $ 604,294 

Component Unit 
Downtown Development Authority $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-

General revenues 
Property taxes 
State shared revenue 
Investment earnings 
Equity interest in SCCMUA operations 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Change in net position 

Restated net position, beginning of the year 

Net position, end of the year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Prima!:l'. Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ (840,245) $ - $ (840,245) 
( 1, 768,498) - (1,768,498) 

(510,550) - (510,550) 
(101,295) - (101,295) 

(21,472) - (21,472) 

(3,242,060) -0- (3,242,060) 

- 127,322 127,322 
- (800) (800) 

-0- 126,522 126,522 

(3,242,060) 126,522 (3, 115,538) 

- - -0-

2,395,682 - 2,395,682 
906,884 - 906,884 

77,054 23,690 100,744 
- 109,766 109,766 

54,936 71,321 126,257 

3,434,556 204,777 3,639,333 

192,496 331,299 523,795 

5,576,245 7,770,882 13,347,127 

$ 5,768,741 $ 8, 102, 181 $ 13,870,922 

Component 
Unit (ODA) 

$ 

-0-

-0-

-0-

384 

384 

384 

$ 384 



Bath Charter Township 

Governmental Funds 

BALANCE SHEET 

December 31 , 201 5 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

General Fund Funds Total 
ASS ETS 

Cash and cash equ ivalents $ 1 ,730 , 1 68 $ 459,428 $ 2 , 1 89,596 
I nvestments 2 ,567,597 2,567,597 
Receivables 

Accounts 24 ,853 24,853 
Taxes 1 , 1 81 ,564 1 ,  1 81 , 564 
Special assessments 4 1 , 1 39 41 , 1 39 

Due from other governmental un its 1 5 1 ,667 1 5 1 ,667 
P repaids 84,472 1 ,  1 81 85,653 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,740,321 $ 501 ,748 $ 6,242,069 

LIABIL IT IES 
Accounts payable $ 86 ,248 $ 66, 1 44 $ 1 52 ,392 
Accrued wages 29 , 1 1 5  1 09 29,224 
Accrued l iab i l it ies 1 8 ,673 1 8 ,673 

TOTAL L IABILITIE S  1 34,036 66,253 200,289 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
P roperty taxes levied for subsequent year 2,630,684 95 ,847 2,726 ,531 

FUN D  BALANCES 
Nonspendable 84,472 1 ,  1 8 1 85,653 
Restricted 1 76,785 1 76 ,785 
Comm itted 1 83,21 0 1 6 1 ,682 344 ,892 
Assigned 229 ,754 229,754 
U nassigned 2,478 , 1 65 2,478 , 1 65 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 2 ,975,601 339,648 3,3 1 5 ,249 

TOTAL L IABI LITI ES ,  DEFERRED 
I NFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND FUND BALANCES $ 5,740,321  $ 501 ,748 $ 6,242,069 

See accompanying notes to financial statements . 
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Bath Charter Township 

RECONCIL IATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF N ET POSITION 

December 31, 2015 

Total fund balance - governmental funds $ 3,315,249 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are d ifferent because: 

Capital assets used in govern mental activities are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.  

The cost of capital assets is 
Accumu lated depreciation is 

Capital assets , net 

Govern m ental funds report actual pension expend itures for the fiscal 
year, whereas the governmental activities wi l l  recogn ize the net pension 
l iab i l ity as of the measurement date. Pension contrib utions subsequent to 
the measu rement date wi l l  be deferred in  the statement of net posit ion. I n  
add ition ,  resources related t o  changes of assumptions.differences 
between expected and actual experience, and d ifferences between 
projectedand actual pension p lan investment earn ings wi l l  be deferred 
over tim e  in the government-wide financial statements. These amounts 
cons ist of: 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pens ions 

Long-term l iabi l ities are not due and payable in  the current period and 
therefore are not reported in  the governmental funds balance sheet. 
Long-term l iabi l ities at year end cons ist of: 

Compensated absences 
Accrued interest payable 
Net pension l iability 
Bonds and notes payable 

Net position of governmental activ ities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements . 
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$ 7,379,072 

(3,558,298) 

(126,924) 

(3,222) 

(1, 101,035) 

(340,000) 

3,820,774 

203,899 

(1,571,181) 

$ 5,768,741 



Bath Charter Township 

Governmental F unds 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,  EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN  FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 201 5 

Non major 
Governmental 

General Fund Funds Total 
REVENUES 

Taxes $ 2 ,61 5 ,552 $ $ 2 ,61 5 ,552 
Licenses and perm its 50 ,079 1 82 ,573 232,652 
I ntergovernm ental 940 ,449 2 ,394 942 ,843 
Charges for services 1 38 ,455 38,41 7 1 76 ,872 
I nterest and rents 1 36 ,693 4 1 36,697 
Other 71 ,835 96, 1 72 1 68 ,007 

TOTAL REVENUES 3 ,953 ,063 3 1 9 ,560 4 ,272,623 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 1 ,255,872 3 , 1 37 1 ,259,009 
Pub l ic safety 1 ,778 ,542 1 77, 1 23 1 , 955,665 
Pub l ic works 529 ,788 70 ,452 600 ,240 
Recreation and cu lture 1 1 8 , 1 75 1 1 8 , 1 75 

Debt service 39,651 75,992 1 1 5 ,643 
Capital outlay 4 ,396 1 07 ,947 1 1 2 ,343 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 ,726 ,424 434,65 1 4, 1 61 ,075 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER ( U N DER) EXPENDITURES 226 ,639 ( 1 1 5 ,09 1 )  1 1 1 ,548 

OTHER F INANC I NG SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in  7 ,500 231 ,931 239 ,431 
Transfers out (231 ,931 ) (7,500) (239,43 1 )  

TOTAL OTHER F INANCING 
SOURCES (USES) (224,43 1 )  224,431 -0-

N ET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 2 ,208 1 09 ,340 1 1 1 ,548 

Fund balances, beg inn ing of year 2 , 973 ,393 230,308 3,203,70 1 

Fund balances , end of year $ 2 ,975,601 $ 339,648 $ 3 ,3 1 5 ,249 

See accompanyin g  notes to financial statements. 
- 5 -



Bath Charter Township 

RECONCIL IATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,  EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES O F  GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Year Ended December 31 , 20 1 5  

Net change i n  fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities i n  the statement of activities are 
d ifferent because: 

Capital outlays are reported as expend itures i n  governmental funds.  
However, i n  the statement of activities , the cost of capital assets is 
a l located over their estimated usefu l l ives as depreciation expense. In the 
current period , these amounts are :  

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 

The internal service fund is used by the Township to charge the costs of 
certa in  activities to individual funds. 

Decrease in net assets of i nternal service fund 

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as expenditures i n  govern mental 
funds,  but the repayment reduces long-term l iabi l it ies in the statement of 
net position .  I n  the current year, these amounts consist of: 

P ri ncipal reti rement 

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not requ ire the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures 
in governmenta l  funds. These activities consist of: 

Decrease in accrued i nterest payable 
Decrease in compensated absences 
( I ncrease) in net pension l iabi l ity 
I ncrease in  deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 306 ,249 
(243,594) 

827 
4,41 0 

( 1 30,767) 
68,373 

$ 1 1 1 , 548 

62,655 

( 1 7 , 894) 

93,344 

(57 , 1 57) 

$ 1 92,496 



Bath Charter Township 

Proprietary Funds 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITIO N  

December 3 1 , 201 5 

Governmental 
Business-�ee Activities Activities 

Internal 
Nonmajor Service Fund 
Enterprise (Employee 

Fund (Water Sick and 
Sewer System System) Total Vacation) 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,143,226 $ 4,620 $ 1, 147,846 $ 
Investments 1, 127,064 1,127,064 
Receivables 

Accounts 357,735 357,735 
Special assessments 2,470 2,470 

Total current assets 2,630,495 4,620 2,635,115 -0-

Noncurrent assets 
Investments 152,773 129,946 282,719 
Investment in SCCMUA 3,094,178 3,094,178 
Capital assets not being depreciated 286,887 286,887 
Capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation 9,666,375 9,666,375 

Total noncurrent assets 13,200,213 129,946 13,330,159 -0-

TOTAL ASSETS 15,830,708 134,566 15,965,274 -0-

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred charge on refunding 48,750 48,750 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 83,194 83,194 
Accrued interest payable 45,807 45,807 
Unearned revenue 352,146 352,146 
Current portion of long-term debt 427,031 427,031 

Total current liabilities 908,178 -0- 908,178 -0-

Noncurrent liabilities 
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt 7,003,665 7,003,665 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,911,843 -0- 7,911,843 -0-

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 4,634,126 4,634,126 
Unrestricted 3,333,489 134,566 3,468,055 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 7,967,615 $ 134,566 $ 8,102,181 $ -0-

See accompanyin g  notes to financial statements. 
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Bath Charter Township 

Proprietary F u nds 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,  AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Year Ended December 31 , 20 1 5  

Governmental 
Business-��e Activities Activities 

Internal 
Non major Service Fund 
Enterprise (Employee 

Sewer Fund (Water Sick and 
S}'.stem System) Total Vacation) 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 1,449,694 $ 5,200 $ 1,454,894 $ 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Contractual services 1,283, 163 1,283,163 
Administrative expenses 40,000 6,000 46,000 
Supplies 4,688 4,688 
Other 83 83 17,894 
Depreciation 311,923 311,923 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,639,857 6,000 1,645,857 17,894 

OPERATING (LOSS) (190,163) (800) (190,963) (17,894) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Equity interest in 2015 SCCMUA operations 109,766 109,766 
Tap in fees 539,625 539,625 
Special assessments 2,798 2,798 
Interest revenue 16, 144 7,546 23,690 
Paying agent fees (2,000) (2,000) 
Interest expense (281,423) (281,423) 
Amortization of deferred charges (3,386) (3,386) 
Grant revenue 61,871 61,871 
Refunds and reimbursements 71,321 71,321 

TOTAL NONOPERATING 
REVENUES (EXPENSES) 514,716 7,546 522,262 -0-

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 324,553 6,746 331,299 (17,894) 

Net position, beginning of year 7,643,062 127,820 7,770,882 17,894 

Net position, end of year $ 7,967,615 $ 134,566 $ 8,102,181 $ -0-

See accompanying n otes to financial statements. 
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Bath Charter Townsh ip 

Proprietary Funds 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended December 31 , 20 1 5  

Governmental 
Business-��e Activities Activities 

Internal 
Non major Service Fund 
Enterprise (Employee 

Fund (Water Sick and 
Sewer System S�stem) Total Vacation) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash receipts from customers $ 1,468,800 $ 5,200 $ 1,474,000 $ 
Cash paid for interfund services (229,716) (53,000) (282,716) 
Cash paid to employees -0- (17,894) 
Cash paid to suppliers (1,265,214) (1,265,214) 

NET CASH (USED) BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (26,130) (47,800) (73,930) (17,894) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Tap in fees 539,625 539,625 
Special assessments 2,798 2,798 
Interest paid (283,188) (283,188) 
Payments on borrowings (420,000) (420,000) 
Capital acquisitions (45,946) (45,946) 
Paying agent fees (2,000) (2,000) 
Grant receipts 61,871 61,871 
Other receipts 71,321 71,321 

NET CASH (USED) BY CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (75,519) -0- (75,519) -0-

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of investments (926,732) 3,927 (922,805) 
Maturity of investments 1,133,292 32,173 1, 165,465 
Interest received 16,144 7,546 23,690 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 222,704 43,646 266,350 -0-

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 121,055 (4,154) 116,901 (17,894) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,022,171 8,774 1,030,945 17,894 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,143,226 $ 4,620 $ 1,147,846 $ -0-

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Bath Charter Township 

Proprietary Funds 

STATEMENT O F  CASH FLOWS - CONTI NUED 

Year Ended December 31 , 20 1 5  

Governmental 
Business-!Xpe Activities Activities 

Internal 
Non major Service Fund 
Enterprise (Employee 

Fund (Water Sick and 
Sewer SY:stem System) Total Vacation) 

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash 
(used) by operating activities 

Operating (loss) $ (190,163) $ (800) $ (190,963) $ (17,894) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net 
cash (used) by operating activities 

Depreciation 311,923 311,923 
(Decrease) in: 

Receivables 1,548 1,548 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 22,720 22,720 
Due to other funds (189,716) (47,000) (236,716) 
Unearned revenue 17,558 17,558 

NET CASH (USED) BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (26, 130} $ �47,8002 $ (73,930) $ (17,894) 

Note: The Township also adjusted its equ ity interest in 201 5  Southern C l inton County M u n icipal Uti l ities 
Authority operations in the Sewer System Fund by $1 09,766, to reflect the current year activity at 
SCCMUA. 

See accompanying notes to financial statements . 
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Bath Charter Township 

F iduciary Funds 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIAB I LITIES 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equ ivalents 

LIABI LITIES 
Due to other governmental un its 

County 
Schools 
Cl inton Area Transit System 

Due to ind iv iduals and agencies 

TOTAL L IAB I LITI ES 

December 31 , 201 5 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 1 1  -

Agency Funds 

$ 2,560 , 1 41 

$ 31 ,207 
2,485 ,3 16  

36 ,228 
7 ,390 

$ 2,560 , 1 41 



Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE A :  DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGN IFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Bath Charter Township, Michigan (the Township) ,  was organized as a Township under provisions of the 
constitution and general law of the State of M ichigan . The Township is one of sixteen (1 6) townships in Cl inton 
County. The Township operates under an appointed Township Superintendent and an elected Township Board 
which consists of a Supervisor, Clerk, Treasu rer, and four  (4) Trustees and provides services to its residents in 
many areas including general government, fire protection ,  law enforcement, and sewer util ity services. 

1 .  Reporting Entity 

As requ i red by accounting princip les genera l ly accepted in  the Un ited States of America, these financial 
statements present the financial activities of Bath Charter Township (primary government) and its component un its , 
entities for which the government is considered to be financial ly accountable .  Blended component un its, although 
legal ly separate entities are, i n  substance, part of the government's operations and so data from these un its are 
combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component un its, on the other hand, are 
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legal ly 
separate from the primary government. 

BLENDED COMPONENT UN IT 

a .  Bu i ld ing Authority - The Bui ld ing Authority is governed by a five (5) member board appointed by the 
Township Board . Its purpose is to provide for the acqu isition and construction of certain publ ic bu i ld ings 
for the use of the Township.  

D ISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT U N IT 

a .  Downtown Development Authority - The Downtown Development Authority (ODA) is governed by a n ine 
(9) member board appointed by the Townsh ip Board . Its purpose is to promote the revital ization, 
development, and use of certain  properties. 

The i nclusion of the activities of various agencies is based on the manifestation of oversight criteria, relying on 
such gu idel ines as the selection of the governing authority, the designation of management, the abi l ity to exert 
s ig n ificant infl uence on operations, and the accountabi l ity for fiscal matters . The accountab i l ity for fiscal matters 
considers the possession of the budgetary authority, the responsibi l ity for surplus or deficit, the control l ing of fiscal 
management, and the revenue characteristics, whether a levy or a charge. Consideration is also given to the 
scope of publ ic service. The scope of public service considers whether the activity is for the benefit of the reporting 
entity and/or its residents and is within the geographic boundaries of the reporting entity and genera l ly available to 
its citizens. 

Based upon the appl ication of these criteria, the financial statements of Bath Charter Township contain al l  the 
funds control led by the Township Board . 

2 .  Joint Venture 

Bath Charter Township is a member of the Southern Cl inton County Mun icipal Uti l ities Authority (SCCMUA) . The 
pu rpose of the Authority is to operate, mainta in ,  admin ister, and manage a sewage d isposal system for the benefit 
of the constituent municipal ities. 

The govern ing body of the Authority is appointed by the constituent mun icipalities , and representation is based 
u pon the purchased capacity of each mun icipa l ity. Bath Charter Township currently is represented by two (2) of 
the ten ( 1 0) members of the Authority board . The annual budget of the Authority is submitted to the constituent 
m u nicipal ities and must be approved by a 2/3 vote of the members-elect of the Authority. 

- 1 2  -



Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Decem ber 31 , 201 5 

NOTE A :  DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED 

2. Joint Venture - continued 

The members of the Authority and approximate percentage of responsibi l ity are as fol lows: 

Bath Charter Township 
DeWitt Charter Township 
City of DeWitt 
Watertown Township 

17 % 
56 % 
1 1  % 
1 6  % 

For the year ended December 31 , 201 5 ,  Bath Charter Township contributed $965,350 to cover its share of 
operational costs and reserve activities. 

Additional ly ,  an investment in  SCCMUA is recorded to reflect the current carrying value at December 3 1 , 201 5, of 
the cumulative effect of SCCMUA operations relating to the Township equ ity share in the joint venture from 
inception-to-date. Bath Charter Township had recorded their portion of the in it ial cost of construction of the 
Authority faci l ities as capital assets in  the Sewer and Water System (Enterprise) Funds, however the portion of 
those costs relating to the Water System has been el iminated as the Townsh ip transferred ownership of its water 
system to the Lansing Board of Water & Light during the fiscal year ended December 31 , 1 999. 

3.  Related Organ izations 

The Township participates in the fol lowing activity which is considered to be a related organization in relation to the 
Townsh ip d ue to the Township  appointing all of the Board Members of the organization. There is no ongoing day­
to-day financial i nterest or responsibi l ity . 

Bath Charter Township Housing Commission - The Township appoints all of the five (5) Commission members . 
The Township does not have an ongoing day-to-day financial interest or responsibi l ity for the Commission .  The 
Commission operates a low income housing project with in the County which is subsidized by HUD in accordance 
with the U . S. Housing Act of 1 937 and is regulated by the Department of HUD .  

Accounting principles general ly accepted in  the Un ited States of America al lows, because the Commission is 
legal ly separate and fiscally independent, for the Commission's financial information to be presented with in  the 
Township 's  notes to the financial statements on ly i nstead of in the body of the financial statements. The fol lowing 
financial information was obtained from the most recent aud ited financial statements available of the Commission 
for their year ended December 31 , 201 5 . A copy of the financial statements is avai lable at the Commission's 
admin istrative offices. As of December 31 , 201 5, the Commission had total assets of $1 ,01 5 ,6 1 5 ;  total l iabi l ities of 
$ 16 , 1 95 ,  and total net position of $999,420. For the year ended December 31 , 201 5, the Commission had total 
operating revenues of $327,742; total operating expenses of $388,441 ; and a decrease in net position of $47,656. 

4. Basis of Presentation 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The statement of net position and the statement of activities (the government-wide financial statements) present 
information for the primary government as a whole. All non-fiduciary activities of the primary government are 
included ( i .e . , fiduciary fund activities are not included in the government-wide financial statements) . For the most 
part, i nterfund activity has been el iminated in the preparation of these statements . Governmental activities, wh ich 
normal ly are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities , which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

- 13 -



Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANC IAL STATEMENTS 

December 3 1 , 201 5 

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES -
CONTINUED 

4. Basis of Presentation - continued 

The statement of activities presents the d irect functional expenses of the primary government and the p rogram 
reven ues that support them. Direct expenses are specifica l ly associated with a service, program, or department 
and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particu lar function . Program revenues are associated with s pecific 
functions and include charges to recipients of goods or services and g rants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of that function. Revenues that are not required to be presented 
as program revenues are general revenues. This includes a l l  taxes, interest, and unrestricted State revenue 
sharing payments and other general revenues and shows how governmental functions are either self-financing or 
supported by general revenues. 

FUN D  F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The fund financial statements present the Townsh ip's ind ividual major funds and aggregated nonmajor funds. 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,  even 
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The major ind ividual governmental 
fund and the major ind ividual  enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

The Townsh ip  reports the fol lowing major governmental fund:  

• The General Fund is the Township's primary operating fund. It accounts for a l l  financial resources of the 
general government except for those that are requ i red to be accounted for in  another fund .  

The Township reports the fol lowing major enterprise fund: 

• The Sewer System Fund is used to accou nt for the operations requ i red to provide sewer services to the 
general publ ic; the costs (expenses, includ ing depreciation) are financed or recovered primarily through 
user charges. 

Add itionally, the Township reports an internal service fund  to account for assets to be uti l ized to pay accrued 
employee sick and vacation balances upon separation from employment with the Township. 

The Township also reports agency funds to account for  assets held by the Township as an agent for  other 
governments , private organizations, or individuals. Agency funds are, by nature,  custod ial ;  therefore, operation 
resu lts are not measured. The Township's agency funds are the Current Tax Col lections Fund and the Trust and 
Agency Fund .  

5 .  Measurement Focus 

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus, simi lar to that used by business enterprises or not-for-profit organizations. Because another 
measurement focus is used in the governmental fund financial statements, reconci l iations to the government-wide 
financial statements are provided that explain the d ifferences in detai l .  

Al l  governmenta l funds are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, on ly current assets , deferred outflows of resources , cu rrent l iab i l ities, and deferred i nflows 
of resources general ly are included on the balance sheet. Operat ing statements of these funds p resent 
increases ( i .e . , reven ues and other financing sources) and decreases ( i .e . , expenditures and other financing 
uses) in fund balance. 

There is no measurement focus for agency funds since assets equal l iab i l ities . 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANC IAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 20 1 5 

NOTE A :  DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED 

6 .  Basis of  Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in  the accounts and reported in the 
financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the t iming of the measurement made, regard less of the 
measurement focus applied. 

All governmental and agency funds are accounted for using the mod ified accrual basis of accounting. Under 
this method ,  revenu es are recogn ized when they become suscept ib le to accrual (when they become both 
"measurable" and "avai lable to finance expend itures of the current period"). The length of time used for 
"avai lab le" for purposes of revenues recognition in the governmental fund financial statements is sixty (60) days . 
Revenues which are considered measurable, but not avai lable, are recorded as a receivab le and unavai lable 
reven ue. Revenues are genera l ly considered avai lable when they are received i n  cash (un less legal ly restricted 
to some future period) or when earned and expected to be col lected soon enough after year-end to pay l iabi l it ies 
of the current period. S ign ificant reven ues susceptible to accrual inc lude certain i ntergovernmental revenues 
and charges for services. Most l icenses and permits , fines and forfeits, and miscel laneous revenue sources 
general ly are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are not measurable unt i l  actua l ly 
received. Expenditures are general ly recogn ized under the mod ified accrual bas is of accounting when the 
related fun d  l iabi l ity is i ncurred , except for i nterest on long-term d ebt wh ich is recorded when d ue. 

The proprietary funds are accounting for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenu es are recogn ized 
when they are earned , and their expenses are recogn ized when they are incurred. 

Proprietary funds d istingu ish operat ing revenues and expenses from non-operat ing items. Operating revenues 
and expenses genera l ly resu lt from provided services and producing and del ivering goods i n  connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operat ing revenues of the enterprise funds are 
charges to customers for sales and services. Operat ing expenses for enterprise funds include the costs of sales 
and services ,  admin istrative expenses, and other costs of run n ing the activity. Al l  revenues and expense not 
meeting th is defin it ion are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

If/when both restricted and u nrestricted resources are avai lab le for use, it is the Townsh ip's pol icy to use 
restricted resources first, then u nrestricted resources if they are needed. 

7. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The General Fund's budget shown as required supplementary i nformation was prepared on the same mod ified 
accrual basis used to reflect actual resu lts. The Township budgets and accounts for certain  activities using 
separate funds even though these activities do not meet requirements of Special Revenue Funds and are reported 
in the General Fund under GASB Statement No. 54. 

The Township employs the fol lowing procedures in establ ish ing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

a. Prior to September 1 ,  the Superintendent submits a proposed operating b udget for the fiscal year 
commencing the fol lowing January 1 to the Townsh ip Board. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

b. Pub l ic hearings are conducted at the Township Hal l  to obtain taxpayer comments. 

c. Prior to December 1 5 , the budget is adopted through passage of a Board resol ution. After the budget is 
adopted , all transfers of budgeted amounts between activities or any revisions that alter the total 
expenditures of the fund or activity must be approved by the Township  Board. 
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Bath Charter Townsh ip 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED 

7. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - contin ued 

d .  The budget i s  legally adopted at the activity level fo r  the General Fund and total expend iture level for the 
Specia l  Revenue Funds; however, they are maintained at the account level for control p urposes. 

e .  Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management contro l  device during the year. 

f. The Township does not employ encumbrance accounting as an extension of formal budgetary integration 
in  the governmental funds. Appropriations unused at December 31 are not carried forward to the fol lowing 
fiscal year. 

g .  Budgeted amounts are reported as orig inal ly adopted o r  amended b y  the Township Board during the year. 

8 .  Cash . Cash Equivalents, and I nvestments 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of checking ,  savings, and investment trust fund accounts . The cash and cash 
equ ivalents are recorded at cost, which approximates market value. 

I nvestments include mutual funds, commercial debt, U .S .  Government Securities, and certificates of deposit with 
an orig inal  maturity of g reater than 90 days from the date of purchase. I nvestments are recorded at market value 
in  accordance with GASB No. 31 , Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External 
Investment Pools. 

9. Receivables 

Receivables consist of amounts due from various individuals and businesses related to charges for services, 
amounts owed to the Township from special assessment, and taxes levied that have not been col lected . 

1 0. P roperty Tax 

Bath Charter Township bi l ls and col lects its own property taxes and the tax levy for other governmental un its . The 
Township's property tax revenue recognition pol icy and related tax calendar d isclosures are as fol lows: 

Property taxes are levied twice per year. A summer tax is levied on J u ly 1 and a winter tax is levied on December 
1 .  The tax levies are d ue September 1 4  and February 1 4, respectively. All taxes not paid by their d ue dates are 
deemed del inquent. Del inquent real property taxes are turned over to the C l inton County Treasu rer on March 1 of 
the year fol lowing the levy. The Cl inton County Treasurer remits payment to all taxing un its on a l l  del inquent real 
property taxes. Del inquent personal property taxes are retained by the Township for subsequent col lection . 

The Township's property tax is levied each December 1 on the taxable valuation of property located in the 
Township as of the preceding December 3 1 . Although the Township's 201 5 tax is levied and col lectible on 
December 31 , 201 5, it is the Township's policy to recognize revenues from the current tax levy in  the subsequent 
year when the proceeds of the levy are budgeted and made available for the financing of Township operations. 

The Township is permitted to levy up to $5 per $1 , 000 of taxable val uation for general governmental service and 
additional amounts for special and debt services. For the year ended December 31 , 201 5 ,  the Township levied 
3 .7220 mi l ls for general governmental services and 3.0000 mi l ls for pol ice and fire services. The total taxable 
value for the 201 4  levy for property with in the Township was $365,257,954. 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED 

1 1 .  l nterfund Transactions 

During the course of normal operations, the Township has numerous transactions between funds, inc lud ing 
expen ditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets , and service debt .  The 
accompanying financial statements general ly reflect such transactions as transfers. Transfers between 
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconci l iatio n  to the government-wide financial 
statements . 

1 2. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded (net of accumulated depreciation, if appl icable) in the government-wide financial 
statements under the governmental activities and bus iness-type activities columns.  Capital assets are those with 
an in it ial ind ividual cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated usefu l l ife of more than one year. Capital assets are 
not recorded in the governmental funds. Instead , capital acqu isition and construction are reflected as expenditures 
in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Al l  
purchased capital assets are valued at cost where h istorical records are avai lable and at an estimated h istorical 
cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on 
the date received . 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or material ly extend asset 
l ives are not capital ized . Depreciation is computed using the straight- l ine method over the fol lowing usefu l l ives: 

1 3. Unearned Revenue 

Land improvements 
Bui ld ings and improvements 
Mach inery and equipment 
Veh icles 
Sewer system and improvements 
Flowage rights 

1 5  - 20 years 
1 0  - 50 years 

5 - 30 years 
2 - 8 years 

1 5  - 40 years 
50 years 

Unearned revenue consists of sewer usage fees the Township bi l ls in advance of services provided . 

1 4. Compensated Absences 

Township employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. I n  the event of termination, an 
employee is paid for accum u lated sick and vacation time. All employees with accumulated unused sick and 
vacation time pay at December 31 , 201 5 , were vested and the total due to them, along with the related payrol l  
taxes , is recorded entirely in the government-wide financial statements. 

1 5. Long-Term Obl igations 

Long-term debt and other long-term obl igations are recognized as a l iabi l ity i n  the government-wide financial 
statements and proprietary fund  types when i ncurred . The portion of those l iabi l ities expected to be paid with in the 
next year is a current l iabi l ity with the remain ing amounts shown as long-term. 

Long-term debt is recognized as a l iabi l ity of a governmental fund when due or when resources have been 
accumu lated for payment early in the fol lowing year. For other long-term obl igations,  only that portion expected to 
be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund l iabi l ity of a governmental fund.  
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F I NANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 3 1 , 201 5 

NOTE A: DESCRIPTION OF TOWNSHIP AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED 

1 6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

I n  addition to assets , the statement of net position and balance sheet wi l l  sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outnows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position/fund balance that appl ies to a future period(s) and so wi l l  not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) unti l  that time. 

In addition to l iabi l ities, the statement of net position and balance sheet wi l l  sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acqu isition of net position/fund balance that appl ies to a future period(s) and so wi l l  not be 
recdgnized as an inflow of resources (revenue) u nti l  that t ime. 

The Township reports deferred outflows of resources in  the statement of net position which correspond to debt 
refunding and the Township's net pension l iab i l ity. The deferred amounts on refunding resu lts from the d ifference 
between the par amount of the refunding bonds and the par amount of the new bonds. This amount is deferred 
and amortized over the shorter of the l ife of the refunded debt or the l ife of the new debt. The deferred amounts 
related to the Township's net pension l iabi l ity consist of d ifferences between projected and actual pension plan 
investment earn ings, and contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. 

The Township reports deferred inflows of resources in certa in funds in connection with long-term receivables 
that are not considered avai lable to l iqu idate l iab i l ities of the current period . 

1 7. Net Pension Liabi l ity 

The net pension l iabi l ity is deemed to be a noncurrent l iab i l ity and is recogn ized on the Township's government­
wide financial statements. 

1 8. Comparative Data 

Comparative data for the prior year has not been presented in a l l  funds in the accompanying financial statements 
since their i nclusion would make the financial statements undu ly complex and d ifficult to read . 

NOTE B: CASH,  CASH EQUIVALENTS. AND INVESTMENTS 

In accordance with Michigan Compi led Laws, the Townsh ip  is authorized to invest in the fol lowing investment 
vehic les: 

1 .  Bonds, securities , and other obl igations of the Un ited States or an agency or  instrumental ity of the United 
States . 

2. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a State or nationally 
chartered bank or a State or Federal ly chartered savings and loan association ,  savings bank, or cred it un ion 
whose deposits are insured by an agency of the United States government and which maintains a principal 
office or  branch office located in  th is State u nder the laws of the State or the United States, but only if the 
bank, savings and loan association,  savings bank, or cred it un ion is eligible to be a depository of surp lus funds 
belong to the State under Section 5 or 6 of Act No. 1 05 of the Publ ic Acts of 1 855, as amended , being Section 
2 1 . 1 45 and 21 . 1 46 of M ichigan Compi led Laws. 

3. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase with in  the three (3) h ighest classifications estab l ished by 
not less than two (2) standard rat ing services and wh ich matures not more than 270 days after the date of 
purchase. 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEM E NTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE B: CASH. CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED 

4. The Un ited States government or federal agency obligations repurchase agreements. 

5. Bankers acceptances of Un ited States banks. 

6. Mutual funds composed of investment vehicles which are legal  for d i rect investment by local un its of 
government in Michigan. 

Deposits 

There is a custodia l  cred it risk as it relates to deposits . I n  the case of deposits, this is the risk  that in the event 
of a bank fai lure, the Township's deposits may not be returned to it. As of December 31 , 201 5 ,  the carry ing 
amounts of the Township's deposits were $9 ,045,699 and the bank balance was $9 , 048,858, of which 
$4,61 4 ,0 1 5 was covered by federal depository insurance. The remain ing balance of $4,434, 843 was un insured 
and u ncol lateral ized. 

Due to s ign ificantly higher cash flow at certain periods during the year, the amount the Township held as cash and 
cash equ ivalents i ncreased sign ificantly. As a resu lt, the amount of un insured and uncollatera l ized cash and cash 
equivalents were substantial ly higher at these peak periods than at year-end. 

I nvestments 

As of December 3 1 , 201 5, the carrying amounts and market values for the investments were as fol lows: 

Weighted 
Carrying Average 

INVESTM ENT TYPE Amount Maturit� Rating % 

I nsured or reg istered for which the securities are held 
by the Township's agent i n  the Townsh ip's name 

Add ison Michigan Commun ity Schools $ 26,688 1 9 . 1  years N/A 3.22% 
Center Line M ich igan Publ ic Schools 9 ,964 5 . 3  years N/A 1 .20% 
Kalamazoo M ich igan 1 00 ,986 7 .8  years N/A 1 2 . 1 7% 
Oakland Macomb County Commun ity Schools 1 23,362 1 .2 years N/A 1 4.87% 
Ottawa County M ichigan 20,225 1 2 .7  years AAA 2 .44% 
Buena Vista Township Mich igan 49,672 1 6  years N/A 5 .99% 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 200,948 24 years Aaa 24.22% 
Govern ment National Mortgage Association 1 42 ,384 2 1 . 5  years Aaa 1 7. 1 6% 
Federal National Mortgage Association 1 27,733 26.4 years Aaa 1 5 .40% 

801 ,962 

Uncategorized pooled investment funds 27,686 N/A N/A 3 .34% 

$ 829,648 

Credit Risk 

State law l imits investments in  certain types of investments to a prime or better rating issued by national ly 
recogn ized statistical rating organ izations (NRSRO's) . As of December 31 , 201 5, the Township's investments 
were rated by Moody's as noted above. 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F I NANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE B: CASH.  CASH EQUIVALENTS. AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED 

I nterest Rate Risk 

The Township wi l l  m in im ize interest rate risk, wh ich is the risk that the market value of securities in  the portfol io wi l l  
fal l  due to changes in  market interest rates, by designating its investment portfolio with the objective of obtain ing a 
rate of return through the economic cycles cons idering risk constraints and cash flow characteristics. 

Custod ial Credit Risk 

The Township wil l m in imize concentration of credit risk, which is the risk  of loss attributed to the magn itude of the 
Townsh ip's i nvestment in  a single issuer, by d iversifying the investment portfolio by security type to ensure that 
potential losses on ind ividual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfol io. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

The Township wi l l  m in im ize custodial credit risk, which is the risk that i n  the event of the fai lure of the counterparty, 
the Townsh ip wi l l  not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party by 
d ivers ifying its i nvestments by institution to ensure that potential losses on ind ividual securities do not exceed the 
income generated by the remainder of the portfol io. 

The cash and cash equ ivalents and investments referred to above have been reported in either the cash and cash 
equ ivalents or investments captions in  the basic financial statements , based u pon criteria disclosed in Note A The 
following summarizes the categorization of these amounts as of December 31 , 201 5 :  

Cash and cash equ ivalents 
Investments - current 
Investments - noncurrent 

NOTE C: INTERFUN D  TRANSFERS 

Primary 
Government 

$ 3 ,337,442 
2 ,5 1 9 , 1 56 
1 ,458 ,224 

$ 7 ,31 4,822 

Component 
Un it 

$ 384 

$ 384 

Fiduciary 
Funds 

$ 2 ,560, 1 4 1  

$ 2 ,560, 14 1  

$ 

$ 

Total 

5 ,897,967 
2 ,5 1 9, 1 56 
1 ,458,224 

9 ,875 ,347 

Permanent rea l locat ion of resources between funds of the reporting  entity is classified as i nterfund transfers. 
For the purpose of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers between ind ividual governmental funds have 
been el iminated . 

Transfers to General Fund from: 
Nonmajor governmental funds 

Transfers to nonmajor governmental funds from : 
General Fund 

$ 7,500 

$ 231 , 931  

Transfers to  the  nonmajor governmental funds from the  General Fund were to  fund current year operating costs 
and debt service. 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Decem ber 3 1 , 201 5 

NOTE D :  CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 3 1 , 201 5 ,  was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Jan.  1 , 20 1 5  Additions Deletions Dec. 3 1 , 201 5 

Governmental activities 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land $ 1 , 1 30,628 $ 5 ,773 $ $ 1 , 1 36,401 

Capital assets being  depreciated 
Land  improvements 875 , 06 1  875,061 
Bui ld ings and improvements 2 ,326, 1 59 1 41 ,652 2 ,467,81 1 
Machinery and equipment 61 6 ,091  7 ,776 623,867 
Flowage rights 76, 0 1 7  76 ,01 7 
Veh icles 2 ,070,940 1 51 , 048 ( 1 1 6 ,060) 2 , 1 05,928 
Office equ ipment and furniture 93, 987 93,987 

S ubtotal 6 , 058,255 300,476 ( 1 1 6 ,060) 6 ,242 ,671 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements (578, 854) (34,595) (61 3 ,449) 
Bui ld ings and improvements (836, 089) (53 ,2 1 5) (889,304) 
Machinery and equipment (275,257) (46,277) (32 1 ,534) 
F lowage rights ( 1 5 ,203) (1 , 520) ( 1 6 ,723) 
Veh icles ( 1 ,63 1 , 374) ( 1 03,956) 1 1 2 ,029 (1 ,623,30 1 ) 
Office equ ipment and furniture (93 ,987) (93,987) 

S ubtotal (3 ,430,764) (239, 563) 1 1 2 ,029 (3,558,298) 

Net capital assets being  depreciated 2 ,627,491 60 , 9 1 3 (4, 031 ) 2 ,684,373 

Capital assets , net $ 3 ,758, 1 1 9  $ 66,686 $ (4 ,03 1 )  $ 3 ,820,774 

Depreciation expense was charged to the fol lowing governmental activities: 

General government $ 55, 1 75 
Publ ic safety 1 51 ,2 1 0 
Publ ic works 1 4 ,627 
Recreation and cultu re 22,582 

Total depreciation expense $ 243 ,594 

The cu rrent year depreciation expense in the Governmental Activities of $239 ,563 has been adjusted by $4,031 
for the d isposal of capital assets du ring the year, i n  accordance with GASB Statement No. 34 implementation 
gu ide wh ich states that immaterial losses may be hand led as an adjustment to the current period's depreciation 
expense. 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 3 1 , 201 5 

NOTE D:  CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED 

Balance Balance 
Jan.  1 , 20 1 5  Add itions Deletions Dec. 3 1 , 201 5 

Business-type activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Construction in p rogress $ 286 , 887 $ $ $ 286,887 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Sewer System 1 5 ,336 ,305 45,946 1 5 , 382,251 
Equ ipment 1 05 ,202 1 05,202 

S ubtotal 1 5 ,441 , 507 45,946 -0- 1 5 ,487,453 

Less accum ulated depreciation for: 
Sewer System (5,41 7 ,722) (306, 803) (5 ,724,525) 
Equ ipment {91 ,433} {5 , 1 20} {96,553} 

S ubtotal (5,509, 1 55) (31 1 , 923) -0- (5, 821 , 078) 

Net capital assets being depreciated 9,932 ,352 {265 ,977} -0- 9 ,666,375 

Capital assets , net $ 1 0,21 9 ,239 $ (265,977) $ -0- $ 9 , 953,262 

NOTE E: LONG-TERM DEBT 

The fol lowing is a summary of changes in long-term debt ( including current portion) of the Township for the year 
ended December 31 , 201 5 : 

Amounts 
Balance Balance Due With in 

Jan. 1 , 201 5 Additions Deletions Dec. 31 , 201 5 One Year 
Governmental activities 
2000 Bui ld ing Authority Bonds $ 395 ,000 $ $ (55, 000) $ 340 ,000 $ 60,000 
Siren purchase agreement 38,344 (38, 344) -0-
Compensated absences 1 3 1 ,334 1 76 , 807 {1 8 1 ,2 1 72 1 26 ,924 1 26,924 

564 ,678 1 76 , 807 (274 ,56 1 )  466 ,924 1 86 ,924 

Business-type activities 

2009 General  Obl igation Bonds 3 , 1 00 ,000 ( 1 50 , 000) 2 ,950,000 1 50 ,000 
20 1 3  Refunding Bonds 2 ,005,000 (200 ,000) 1 ,805,000 200,000 
20 1 3  Sewer System Bonds 2,740 ,000 (70 ,000) 2 ,670 ,000 75,000 
Bond d iscounts/premiums 7 ,727 (2 , 03 1 2  5,696 2 ,031  

7 ,852,727 -0- (422 ,03 1 )  7 ,430,696 427 ,03 1 

$ 8 ,4 1 7 ,405 $ 1 76 ,807 $ (696,592) $ 7 ,897,620 $ 6 1 3,955 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANC IAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE E :  LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED 

Sign ificant details regarding outstanding long-term debt ( including current portion) are presented below: 

General Obl igation Bonds 

$900 , 000 Bui ld ing Authority Bonds, Series 2000, dated August 1 ,  2000, due i n  annual 
insta l lments ranging from $60,000 to $75, 000 through May 1 ,  2020, with interest rang ing from 
5.60 to 5 .80 percent, payable semi-annual ly. 

$3,500, 000 Bath Township General Obl igation Bonds, Series 2009 , dated December 22, 
2009 ,  due in  annual insta l lments ranging from $ 1 50,000 to $200,000 through May 1 ,  2030, 
with i nterest ranging from 3 .40 to 4 .  70 percent, payable semi-annual ly. 

$2 ,225 , 000 Bath Township General Obl igation Refunding Bonds, Series 201 3, dated January 
30, 2 0 1 3 ,  due in annual instal lments ranging from $ 1 80,000 to $220,000 through November 1 ,  
2024 , with interest ranging from 2 .00 to 2 .50 percent, payable sem i-ann ual ly. 

$2 , 800 , 000 Bath Township General Ob l igation Bonds, Series 201 3A, dated September 4, 
201 3 ,  due in annual  insta l lments ranging from $75 ,000 to $ 1 75,000 through November 1 ,  
2038 ,  with interest ranging from 3 . 00 to 4 .75 percent, payable semi-annual ly. 

The annual requirements to pay the debt principal and interest outstanding are as follows: 

Genera l  Ob l i1ption Bonds 
Year End ing 

December 31 , Principal I nterest 

201 6  $ 485,000 $ 289,938 
201 7  555,000 274,238 
201 8  565,000 256,323 
201 9 575,000 237,733 
2020 540,000 2 1 8 ,21 3 

2 1 2 1 -2025 2,260,000 840 ,61 5 
2026-2030 1 , 575,000 472,565 
2031 -2035 7 1 0 , 000 221 ,490 
2036-2038 500,000 48,202 

$ 7,765,000 $ 2 ,859 ,3 17  

Compensated absences 

$ 340,000 

2 ,950,000 

1 , 805,000 

2,670,000 

$ 7,765,000 

Individua l  employees have vested rights u pon termination of employment to receive payments for u nused sick and 
vacation time. The dol lar amount of these vested rights includ ing related payrol l  taxes, which have been accrued 
on the financial statements in the government-wide financial statements, amounted to approximately $ 1 26,924 at 
December 31 , 201 5 ,  of which al l  has been classified as a current l iabi l ity. 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE F :  RETIREMENT PLANS 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The Township participates in  the M u nicipal Employees Ret irement System (MERS) of M ich igan . MERS is an 
agent m u lt ip le-employer, statewide pub l ic employee pension plan estab l ished by the M ichigan's Legislature 
u nder Pub l ic Act 1 35 of 1 945 and admin istered by a n ine (9) member Retirement Board . M ERS issues a 
pub l icly avai lable financial report that inc ludes financial statements and required supplementary i nformation .  
This report may b e  obtained accessing  MERS website at www.mersofmich . com. 

Summary of Sign ificant Account ing Pol icies 

For the p u rposes of measuri ng  the net pension l iab i l ity , deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resou rces related to pensions ,  and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Mun icipal Employees Reti rement System of M ichigan and additions to/deductions from M ERS' fid uciary net 
position  h ave been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MERS. For this purposes, benefit 
payments ( inc lud ing refunds of employee contributions) are recogn ized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms . I nvestments are reported at fai r  value .  

A Benefits Provided 

The p lan provides certain ret irement, d isab i l ity , and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries . Publ ic 
Act 427 of 1 984, as amended , establ ished and amends the benefit p rovisions of the participants in  MERS .  The 
M ERS p lan covers all el ig ib le employees of the Township .  The plan is  open to new h i res . 

Retirement benefits for employees are calcu lated at 2 .50 percent of the employee's th ree-year fina l  average 
compensation times the emp loyee's years of service with a maximum of 80 percent of fina l  average 
compensation .  Normal reti rement age is 60 with an un red uced benefit at age 55 with 20 years of service or a 
reduced benefit at age 50 with 25 years of service or age 55 with 1 5  years of service. Deferred ret irement 
benefits vest after 1 0  years of cred ited service , but are not paid u nt i l  the date retirement wou ld have occurred 
had the member remained an employee. Emp loyees are el ig ib le for non-d uty d isabi l ity benefits after 6 years of 
service and  for duty related d isabi l ity benefits upon h i re .  Disabi l ity benefits are determined in the same manner 
as reti rement benefits but are payable immediately and if duty-related without an actuarial reduction for 
ret irement before age 60 is not appl ied.  An employee who leaves service may withd raw h is or her contributions, 
plus any accrued interest. 

Benefit terms,  with in the parameters establ ished by M ERS, are genera l ly establ ished and amended by authority 
of the Township Board ,  genera l ly after negotiations of those terms with the effected un ions. 

At the December 31 , 201 4, valuation date, the fol lowing  employees were covered by the benefit terms:  

I nactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefits 
I nactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active employees 

Total 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE F :  RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 

Contributions 

Article 9 ,  Sectio n  24 of the State of M ichigan constitution requ i res that financial benefits aris ing on account of 
employee service rendered i n  each year be funded during that year. Accord ing ly, MERS retains an independent 
actuary to determine the annual contribution . The employer is requ i red to contri bute amounts at least equa l  to 
the actuarial ly d etermined rate, as establ ished by the MERS retirement board . The actuarial ly determined rate is 
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year, with 
an add it ional amount to finance any u nfunded accrued l iab i l ity. The employer may establ ish contribution rates to 
be paid by its covered employees. 

For the year ended December 31 , 2014 ,  the active employee contrib ution rate was 1 0 .64% of annual  payro l l .  
Employer contrib utions were 1 0% based on annual  payro l l .  

Net Pension L iab i l ity 

The net pens ion l iab i l ity reported at December 3 1 , 201 5 was determi ned using a measure of the total l iab i l ity 
and the pens ion  net position as of December 3 1 , 20 1 4 . The December 3 1 , 20 1 4, total pension l iab i l ity was 
determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of that date. 

Changes in  the net pension l iabi l ity du ring the measurement year were as fo l lows: 

Changes i n  Net Pension Liabi l ity 

Balances at December 3 1 , 201 3 

Changes for the Year 
Service cost 
I nterest on total pension l iab i l ity 
Employer contributions 
Employee contributions 
Net investment income 
Benefit payments, including employee refunds 
Admin istrative expense 
Other changes 

Net changes 

Balances at December 3 1 , 201 4  

- 2 5  -

I ncrease (Decrease) 
Total Pension Plan F iduciary 

Liabi l ity Net Position 
(a) (b) 

$ 5, 532, 056 

232,409 
460,276 

(1 38,332) 

(1 ) 

554 ,352 

$ 6 ,086,408 

$ 4,561 ,788 

1 35,526 
1 44,798 
292,403 

( 1 38,332) 
( 1 0 ,8 1 0) 

423,585 

$ 4, 985,373 

Net Pension 
Liab i l ity 
(a)-(b) 

$ 970,268 

232,409 
460 ,276 

( 1 35,526) 
( 1 44,798) 
(292,403) 

1 0 , 8 1 0 
( 1 ) 

1 30,767 

$ 1 , 1 01 , 035 



Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANC IAL STATEMENTS 

December 3 1 , 201 5 

NOTE F: RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred I nflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

For the year ended December 3 1 , 20 1 5 , the Townsh ip  recogn ized pension expenses of $204 , 063. The 
Township reported deferred outflows and i nflows of resources related to pensions from the fol lowing sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows I nflows 

of Resources of Resources 

Net d ifference between projected and actual 
earn ings on pension p lan investments $ 62,230 $ 

Contrib utions subsequent to the 
measurement date* 141 ,669 

Total $ 203 ,899 $ -0-

* The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resu lting from contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date wi l l  be recognized as a reduction in the net pension l iabi l ity for the year end ing 
December 31 , 201 6 .  

Amounts reported as  deferred outflows and  inflows of  resources related to  pensions wi l l  be  recogn ized in  
pension expense as fol lows: 

Actuarial assumptions 

Year Ending 
December 3 1 , 

201 6 
201 7 
201 8 
201 9 

$ 

Pension 
Expense 

(1 5 ,558) 
(1 5 ,558) 
( 1 5 ,558) 
(1 5 ,556) 

The tota l pension l iab i l ity in the December 3 1 , 201 4 annual actuarial valuation was determined using the 
fo l lowing actuarial assumptions,  appl ied to a l l  periods incl uded i n  the measurement: 

I nflation :  3%-4% 

Salary increases : 4.5% in  the long-term ( 1 % ,  2% ,  and 3% for calendar years 201 4 , 201 5 , and 201 6 , 
respectively) . 

I nvestment rate of return:  8 .0%,  net of investment expenses, inc luding i nflation .  

Although no specific price i nflation assumptions are needed for the valuation , the 4.5% long-term wage 
inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflat ion of 3%-4%. 

Mortal ity rates used were based on the 1 994 Group Annu ity Mortal ity Table of a 50% Male and 50% 
Female blend . For d isab led retirees,  the regu lar mortal ity table is used with a 1 0-year set forward in  ages 
to reflect the h ig her expected mortal ity rates of d isab led members .  

The actuarial assumptions used in valuation were based on the resu lts of the most recent actuarial experience 
study in 2008. 
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Bath Charter Townsh ip  

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE F: RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 

Discount Rate 

The d iscount rate used to measure the total pension l iabi l ity is 8 .25%.  The projection of cash  flows used to 
determine the d iscount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions wi l l  be made at the rates 
agreed upon for employees and the actuarial ly determined rates for employers. 

Projected Cash F lows 

Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be avai lable to pay a l l  
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was appl ied to a l l  periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension l iabi l ity . 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in 
wh ich the best-estimate ranges of expected future real  rates of return (expected returns ,  net of investment and 
adm i n istrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target 
asset a l location percentage and by adding expected i nflation .  

The  target al location and  best estimates of arithmetic real rates o f  return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the fol lowing tab le: 

Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Target Al location Real Rate of Return 

G lobal Equ ity 57.50% 5 .02% 
G lobal F ixed I ncome 20.00% 2 . 1 8% 
Real Assets 1 2 .50% 4.23% 
Diversifying Strateg ies 1 0.00% 6 .56% 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liabi l ity to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The fol lowing presents the net pension l iab i l ity of the employer, calcu lated using the discount rates of 8.25%, as 
wel l  as what the City's net pension l iab i l ity would be using a d iscount rate that is 1 % lower (7 .25%) or 1 % higher 
(9 .25%) than the cu rrent rate. 

1 %  Decrease 

Net pens ion l iab i l ity $ 1 , 975 , 0 1 7 

Defined Contribution Plan 

Current 
D iscount Rate 

$ 1 , 1 0 1 , 035 

1 %  I ncrease 

$ 379,703 

Bath Charter Township is the sponsor of a defined contribution retirement p lan for the sole benefit of the Board 
Members for the Townsh ip .  The Bath Charter Township Pension Plan is a money purchase defined contribution 
pension benefit p lan .  The plan is admin istered by the John Hancock Life I nsurance Company. Contributions 
are based on a pre-estab l ished wage-based contribution schedu le with the Township contribut ing 1 00% of the 
amount. Employees may elect to contribute add itional amounts rang ing from 1 to 1 0  percent of their 
com pensation .  During the year ended December 3 1 , 201 5, the Township made contributions for al l e l ig ib le 
participating employees equal to 1 0% of their base compensation .  

For the year ended December 3 1 , 201 5 ,  the Township made employer contributions to the ret irement p lan in  the 
amount of $2, 1 1 3 .  There were no employee contributions for the year. 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 201 5 

NOTE G :  RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Township participates in  the Michigan Townsh ip  Participating Plan (the  Plan) with other mun icipal it ies for 
auto, p roperty, wrongfu l acts, law enforcement, crime, i n land marine,  and l iab i l ity losses. The Plan is organ ized 
u nder P ub l ic  Act 1 38 of 1 982 , as amended . The Plan ,  wh i le it operates under the M ichigan Legislatio n  of Publ ic 
Act 1 38 ,  does not operate as a risk pool  due  to the transfer of risk to U.S.  Specialty I nsurance Company 
("USSIC") backing the Mich igan Township Participatin g  Plan under a master pol icy for the period J u ly 1 ,  201 1 to 
Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 . Due to this Master Pol icy purchase, there is no pool ing of risk  between members but i nstead it is 
commercial  insurance. Settled claims relatin g  to th is insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance 
coverage in any of the past three (3) fiscal years .  

· 

The Township also participates in a pool ,  the Mich igan Mun icipal League Workers' Compensation Fund ,  with 
other m u n icipal ities for workers' compensation losses. The pool is organ ized under Publ ic Act 31 7 of 1 969,  as 
amended . I n  the event the pool's claims and expenses for a pol icy year exceed the total normal annual 
premiums for said years , al l  members of the specific pool 's pol icy year may be subject to special assessment to 
make u p  the deficiency.  The Townsh ip has not been i nformed of any specia l  assessments being requ i red . 

NOTE H :  DETAI LS OF FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions establ ished fund 
balance classifications that comprise a h ierarchy based primari ly on the extent to wh ich a government is bound to 
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in the governmental funds. The fo l lowing are 
the five classifications of fund balance under this standard :  

Nonspendable - assets that are not avai lable i n  a spendable form such as i nventory, prepaid expenditures, and 
long-term receivables not expected to be converted to cash in the near term. It also includes funds that are legally 
or contractual ly required to be maintained intact such as the corpus of a permanent fund or foundation . 

Restricted - amounts that are requ ired by external parties to be used for a specific purpose. Constraints are 
externa l ly imposed by creditors, g ranters, contributors o r  laws, regu lations or enabl ing legislation .  

Committed - amounts constrained o n  use imposed b y  formal action of the government's highest level o f  decision 
making authority ( i .e . , Board, Counci l ,  etc . ) .  

Assigned - amounts intended to be used for specific purposes. This is determined by the govern ing body, the 
budget or  finance committee or a delegated municipal ity officia l .  

Unassigned - a l l  other resources ;  the remaining fund balance after nonspendable, restrictions, commitments , and 
assignments . This class only occurs in  the General Fund, except for cases of negative fund balances. Negative 
fund balances are always reported as unassigned, no matter which fund the deficit occurs in .  

Fund Balance C lassification Pol icies and Procedures 

For com mitted fund balance, Bath Charter Township 's h ighest level of decis ion-making authority is the Board of 
Trustees . The formal action that is requ i red to be taken to establ ish ,  modify, or rescind a fun d  balance 
commitment is a resol ution. 

For ass igned fund balance, the Township Trustees are authorized to assign amounts to a specific pu rpose. The 
authorization has been delegated by the Townsh ip Trustees to the Township S uperintendent. 

For the classification of fund balances, Bath Charter Township considers restricted amounts to have been spent 
fi rst when an expenditure is i ncurred for which both restricted and un restricted fund balance is avai lab le .  Also 
for the classification of fund balances, Bath Charter Township considers committed , assigned, or u nassigned 
amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is i ncu rred for purposes for which amounts in any of those 
un restricted fund  balance classifications could be used . 
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Bath Charter Township 

NOTES TO F INANC IAL STATEMENTS 

December 3 1 , 201 5 

NOTE H :  DETAI LS OF FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS - CONTINUED 

Nonmajor 
General Governmental 

Fund Funds Total 
Fund Balances 

Nonspendable 
Prepaids $ 84,472 $ 1 ,  1 81 $ 85,653 

Restricted 
Pub l ic  safety 1 25 ,422 1 25 ,422 
Street l ights 49,251  49,251 
Debt service 2 , 1 1 2 2 , 1 1 2  

Comm itted 
Budget stabi l ization 1 83 ,21 0 1 83,21 0 
Cemetery 1 1 2 , 557 1 1 2 ,557 
Capital projects 49, 1 25 49, 1 25 

Assigned 
Sen ior Center 20,007 20 ,007 
Farmers' Market 1 0,41 8 1 0,41 8 
Library 27,034 27,034 
Capital projects 1 72,295 1 72,295 

Unassigned 2 ,478, 1 65 2 ,478 , 1 65 

$ 2 ,975,601 $ 339,648 $ 3 ,31 5,249 

NOTE I: RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION 

Beg inn ing net posit ion has been restated for governmental activities due to a change in  accounting princip les. 

Beg inn ing net position 
Deferred outflows of contributions 
Net pension l iab i l ity 

Restated beg inn ing net position 

NOTE J: CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 6 ,41 0 ,987 
1 35, 526 

(970,268) 

$ 5 ,576,245 

GASB Statement No.  68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, was implemented during the year. 
The statement requ i res governments provid ing defined benefit pensions to recogn ize their unfunded pension 
benefit obl igation as a l iabi l ity for the fi rst t ime, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the 
annual costs of pension benefits . The statement a lso enhances accou ntabi l ity and transparency through 
revised note d isclosures and requ i red supplementary information (RSI ) .  

GASB Statement No .  71 , Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, was implemented during the year as i t  is  required to be appl ied 
simu ltaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68. The statement addresses and issue regard i ng the 
application of the transition provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 and amends  paragraph 1 37 of GASB Statement 
No. 68 and requ i res that, at transition , a government recogn ize a beginn ing deferred outflow of resources for its 
pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beg inn ing net pension l iab i l ity. 
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Bath Charter Townsh ip 

NOTES TO F I NANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

December 3 1 , 201 5 

NOTE K: U PCOMING ACCOUNTING P RONOUNCEMENTS 

In March 201 5, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This statement 
addresses accounting  and financial reporting issues related to fair  value measurements . The defin it ion of fai r  
value is  the price that would be received to se l l  an asset or pa id to transfer a l iab i l ity i n  an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. This statement provides gu idance for determin ing a fai r  
value measurement for financial reporting  purposes . Th is  statement also provides g u idance for applying fai r  
value to certain investments and d isclosures related to a l l  fair  value measurements. The Township is currently 
evaluat ing the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted for the 20 16  fiscal year. 

In August 201 5, the GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. The statement improves 
financial reporting th rough the d isclosure of information about the nature and magn itude of tax abatements that 
are not consistently or  comprehensively reported to the pub l ic at present. The Townsh ip is currently evaluat ing 
the impact th is standard wi l l  have on the financial statements when adopted during the 201 7  fiscal year. 
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Bath Charter Township 

General Fund 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS) 

Year E nded December 31 , 201 5 

Variances with 
Bud9eted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Ori9inal Final Actual !Ne9ative2 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

Current property taxes 
General $ 1 ,361 ,692 $ 1 ,276 ,692 $ 1 ,299 ,769 $ 23,077 
Pol ice and fire 1 ,097 ,549 1 , 1 04 ,324 1 ,095,580 (8,744) 
Other 53,000 60,533 47,865 (1 2 ,668) 

Trai ler taxes 2 ,000 2 ,000 7,8 1 2  5 ,8 1 2  
Tax collection fees 1 55 ,000 1 58 ,252 1 64,526 6,274 

Total taxes 2 ,669,241 2 ,601 ,801  2 ,61 5 ,552 1 3 ,75 1  

Licenses and  perm its 
Franchise fees 40,000 40,000 50 ,079 1 0,079 

I ntergovernmental 
State grants 1 6 , 752 1 6 ,71 6 (36) 
State shared revenue 923,296 923,296 906,884 (1 6 ,41 2) 
Metro act revenue 1 0 ,000 1 0, 000 9,609 (39 1 )  
Liquor licenses 6 ,300 6 ,300 7,240 940 

Total intergovernmental 939,596 956,348 940,449 (1 5 ,899) 

Charges for services 
Admin istration fees 46 ,000 93,000 46,000 (47,000) 
Court fees 34, 1 50 34, 1 50 32,676 (1 ,474) 
Park and recreation fees 20 ,425 23 ,969 24,859 890 
Fire fees 5 5 
Police fees 1 ,650 1 ,650 1 ,3 1 4  (336) 
Other 6 ,655 6 ,655 

Total charges for services 1 02 ,225 1 52 ,769 1 1 1 ,509 (41 ,260) 

Interest and rents 
Interest - regular 1 20 ,000 1 00 , 000 70,491 (29 ,509) 
I nterest - tax collections 3 ,000 3 ,000 6,559 3 ,559 
Rental fees 55,000 55,000 59,643 4 ,643 

Total interest and rents 1 78 ,000 1 58 ,000 1 36,693 (2 1 ,307) 

Other 
Refunds and rebates 70,392 339 (70,053) 
Reimbursements 1 8 ,555 1 8 ,555 38,806 20,251 
Other revenue 3 ,750 66,750 8 ,568 (58 , 1 822 

Total other 22 ,305 1 55 ,697 47,71 3 (1 07,9842 

TOTAL REVENUES 3,951 ,367 4 ,064,6 1 5  3,901 ,995 ( 1 62,620) 
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Bath Charter Township 

General F u nd 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BAS IS} - CONTINUED 

Year Ended December 31 , 201 5  

Variances with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual {Negative� 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Township board $ 1 6 1 , 022 $ 1 6 1 ,722 $ 1 69 ,520 $ (7,798) 
Supervisor 1 5 , 037 1 5 , 037 1 4, 1 42 895 
Superintendent 1 1 2 , 1 73 1 1 2 , 1 73 1 1 0 ,033 2 , 1 40 
Elections 6 ,300 1 1 ,300 4,478 6 ,822 
Assessor 1 29 ,809 1 31 , 809 1 04,442 27,367 
Clerk 1 64 ,7 1 1 1 72 ,7 1 1 1 70 ,501 2 ,2 1 0 
Board of review 2 ,6 1 5  2 ,61 5 1 ,347 1 ,268 
Treasurer 1 75 ,590 1 82 ,090 1 72,409 9 ,681 
Building and grounds 1 30 ,500 1 29 ,500 1 02,730 26,770 
Other 324,936 350 ,746 31 1 , 798 38,948 

Total general government 1 ,222,693 1 ,269 ,703 1 ,  1 6 1 ,400 1 08 ,303 

Public safety 
Police department 1 ,427,643 1 ,572 ,8 1 9  1 ,489,628 83, 1 9 1 
Fire department 285 , 1 60 283 ,041 288 ,9 14 {5,873) 

Total public safety 1 ,7 1 2 ,803 1 ,855,860 1 ,778,542 77,3 1 8  

Public works 
Department of public works 6 14 ,477 570,277 529,788 40,489 

Recreation and culture 
Parks and recreation 80,834 80 ,834 68,947 1 1 ,887 

Debt service 
Principal 37,228 37,228 38,494 (1 ,266) 
Interest 2,267 2 ,267 1 , 1 57 1 ,  1 1 0 

Total debt service 39,495 39,495 39,651 (1 56) 

TOTAL EXPEND ITURES 3,670,302 3,8 1 6 , 1 69 3,578,328 237 ,841 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 28 1 , 065 248 ,446 323,667 75,221  
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Bath Charter Townsh ip  

General Fund 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BAS IS} - CONTI NUED 

Year Ended December 31 , 201 5 

Variances with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative� 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in $ 7,500 $ 7 ,500 $ 7,500 $ -0-

Transfers out (285,756) (354,029) (352,079) 1 ,950 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING (USES) (278 ,256) (346 ,529) (344,579) 1 ,950 

Net change in fund balance 
(Budgetary basis) $ 2,809 $ (98 ,083) (20 ,91 2) $ 77, 1 7 1 

Budgetary perspective difference 23, 1 20 

Net change in fund balance (GAAP basis) $ 2 ,208 
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Bath Charter Township 

Defined Benefit Pension P lan 

SCHEDULE OF  CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIAB I LITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

Last Fiscal Year (U lt imately ten fiscal years wi l l  be d isplayed) 

(Amounts were determined as of 1 2/3 1 of the previous fiscal year) 

201 5 

Total Pension Liabi l ity 
Service cost $ 232,409 
I nterest 460,276 
Benefit payments inc luding emp loyee refunds ( 1 38,332) 
Other ( 1 )  

Net Change i n  Total Pension Liabi l ity 554,352 

Total Pension Liabi l ity, beg inn ing 5 ,532, 056 

Total Pension Liabi l ity, ending $ 6 ,086,408 

Plan F iduciary Net Position  
Contributions - employer 1 35 ,526 
Contributions - employee 1 44,798 
Net I nvestment income 292,403 
Benefit payments including employee refunds ( 1 38,332) 
Adm inistrative expense (1 0 ,8 1 0) 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 423 ,585 

Plan F iduciary Net Position ,  beg i nn ing 4 ,561 ,788 

Plan F iduciary Net Position ,  end ing  $ 4,985,373 

Employer Net Pension Liab i l ity $ 1 , 1 01 ,035 

Plan F iduciary Net Position as a percentage of the 
Total Pension Liabi l ity 82% 

Covered Employee Payro l l  $ 1 ,424,074 

Employer's Net Pension Liabi l ity as a percentage 
of covered employee payro l l  77% 
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Bath Charter Township 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRI BUTIONS 

Last F iscal Year (U ltimately ten fiscal years wi l l  be d isplayed) 

(Amounts were determined as of 1 2/31 of each fiscal year) 

Actuaria l ly determ ined contrib utions 

Contributions in  relation to the actuarial ly 
determined contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

Covered employee payro l l  

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
employee payrol l  
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201 5 

$ 1 41 ,669 

1 41 ,669 

$ -0-

$ 1 ,4 1 6 ,691 

1 0% 



Bath Charter Townsh ip 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY I N FORMATION 

Year Ended December 31 , 20 1 5  

NOTE A :  EXCESS O F  EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

Mich igan Publ ic Act 621 of 1 978, Sections 1 8  and 1 9 , as amended , provides that a local governmental un it not 
incur expenditures in excess of the amounts appropriated. 

The Townsh ip's budgeted expenditures in the General Fund have been shown at the functional classification level .  
The approved budgets of the Township have been adopted at the activity level for the General Fund and the total 
expenditure level for the Specia l  Revenue Funds. 

During the year ended December 31 , 201 5 , the Township incurred expend itures in the General Fund in excess of 
the amounts appropriated as fol lows: 

General Fund 
Township board 

Pub l ic Safety 
F ire department 

Debt Service 
Principal 

NOTE B :  BUDGETIGAAP RECONCI LIATION 

Amounts 
Appropriated 

$ 1 61 ,722 $ 

283 ,04 1  

37,228 

Amounts 
Expended Variance 

1 69 ,520 $ 7 ,798 

288, 9 14  5 ,873 

38,494 1 ,266 

Bath C harter Township budgets the activities of the Library, Senior Center, and Farmers' Market separately from 
the General Fund .  For financial statement purposes and the GAAP-basis basic financial statements ,  however, 
the activities of the above mentioned funds are comb ined with the General F u nd as requ i red by GASB 
Statement No.  54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The budgetary 
perspective d ifference shown on the Genera l  Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Non-GAAP budgetary 
basis) reconci les the change in fun d  balance to the GAAP-basis basic financial statements and the detai ls 
related to these amounts are as fol lows: 

Net change in fund balance (Budgetary Basis) 

To adjust for revenues and expenditures generated related to 
various activities accounted for in separate funds 

To remove transfers out from the budgetary basis schedule 

Net actual change in fund balance (GAAP Bas is) 
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$ (20,9 1 2) 

(97,028) 

1 20, 1 48 

$ 2,208 
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Bath Charter Township 

General Fund 

COMB I N ING BALANCE SHEET 

December 31 , 201 5 

Budget 
General Fund Stabi l ization Library 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equ ivalents $ 1 ,486,431 $ 1 83 ,2 1 0  $ 27 ,71 8 
I nvestments 2 ,567,597 
Receivables 

Accou nts 24 ,853 
Taxes receivable 1 , 1 81 ,564 

Due from other governmental un its 1 5 1 ,667 
Prepaids 84,472 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,496,584 $ 1 83 ,2 1 0  $ 27,71 8 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 84,555 $ $ 1 33 
Accrued wages 27,740 551 
Accrued l iabi l ities 1 8 ,673 

TOTAL LIAB I LITIES 1 30 ,968  -0- 684 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Property taxes levied for subsequent year 2 ,630,684 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 84,472 
Committed 1 83 ,2 1 0 
Assigned 1 72,295 27,034 
Unassigned 2,478, 1 65 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 2,734,932 1 83 ,2 1 0 27,034 

TOTAL LIAB I LITIES,  DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF  RESOURCES, 
AND FUND BALANCES $ 5 ,496,584 $ 1 83 ,2 1 0  $ 27,71 8 
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Farmers' 
Sen ior Center Market Total 

$ 2 1 , 829 $ 1 0, 980 $ 1 ,730, 1 68 
2 ,567,597 

24, 853 
1 , 1 81 , 564 

1 51 ,667 
84,472 

$ 21 , 829 $ 1 0 ,980 $ 5 ,740,321 

$ 998 $ 562 $ 86,248 
824 29, 1 1 5  

1 8 ,673 

1 , 822 562 1 34,036 

2 ,630,684 

84,472 
1 83 ,21 0 

20,007 1 0 ,41 8 229,754 
2 ,478 , 1 65 

20,007 1 0,41 8 2 ,975 ,601 

$ 21 ,829 
=

$
===

1=0=
,9=80

= 
$ 5 ,740,321 
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Bath Charter Township 

General Fund 

COMB I N ING STATEMENT O F  REVENUES ,  EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN  FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended December 31 , 20 1 5  

Budget 
Genera l  Fund Stabi l ization L ibrary 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 2 ,61 5 ,552 $ $ 
Licenses and perm its 50,079 
I ntergovernmental 940,449 
Charges for services 1 1 1 ,509 
I nterest and rents 1 36,693 
Other 47,71 3 2 ,5 1 0  

TOTAL REVENUES 3 ,901 ,995 -0- 2 ,51 0 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 1 , 1 6 1 ,400 
Publ ic safety 1 ,778,542 
Publ ic works 529,788 
Recreation and cu ltu re 68 ,947 49 ,228 

Debt service 39 ,651 
Capital outlay 291 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 ,578,328 -0- 49,51 9 

EXCESS O F  REVENUES 
OVE R  (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 323,667 -0- (47,009) 

OTHER F I NANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 7,500 60,661 
Transfers out (352,079) 

TOTAL OTHER F INANCING 
SOURCES (USES) (344,579) -0- 60,661 

NET CHANGE IN  FUND BALANCES (20 ,91 2) -0- 1 3 ,652 

Fund balances, beg inn ing of year 2 ,755 ,844 1 83 ,2 1 0  1 3 ,382 

Fund balances, end of year $ 2,734,932 $ 1 83 ,21 0 $ 27,034 
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Farmers' Total Before 
Senior Center Market E l im inations El im inations Total 

$ $ $ 2 ,61 5 ,552 $ $ 2 ,61 5,552 
50,079 50,079 

940,449 940,449 
22 ,201 4 ,745 1 38 ,455 1 38,455 

1 36 ,693 1 36,693 
1 4 ,286 7 ,326 71 , 835 71 ,835 

36 ,487 1 2 ,071  3 , 953 ,063 -0- 3 , 953,063 

70,71 7 23,755 1 ,255,872 1 ,255,872 
1 ,778,542 1 , 778,542 

529,788 529,788 
1 1 8 , 1 75 1 1 8, 1 75 

39,651 39,651 
4 , 1 05 4 ,396 4,396 

74,822 23,755 3 ,726,424 -0- 3 ,726,424 

(38,335) (1 1 ,684) 226,639 -0- 226,639 

49,487 1 0 ,000 1 27 ,648 ( 1 20, 1 48) 7,500 
(352, 079) 1 20, 1 48 (231 ,93 1 ) 

49,487 1 0, 000 (224,43 1 )  -0- (224,431 )  

1 1 ,  1 52 (1 ,684) 2,208 -0- 2,208 

8 , 855 12, 1 02 2 ,973,393 2 ,973,393 

$ 20, 007 $ 1 0 ,41 8 $ 2 ,975,601  $ -0- $ 2 , 975,601 

- 40 -



Bath Charter Township 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

COMBI N ING BALANCE SHEET 

December 31 , 201 5 

S�ecial 
Pol ice Street Drug 

Train ing Lighting Forfeiture Cemetery 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equ ivalents $ 6 ,282 $ 1 03 ,959 $ 9,826 $ 1 1 2 ,557 
Special assessments receivable 4 1 , 1 39 
Prepaids 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,282 $ 1 45 ,098 $ 9,826 $ 1 1 2 , 557 

LIAB I LITI ES  
Accou nts payable $ $ $ $ 
Accrued wages 

TOTAL LIAB I LITI ES -0- -0- -0- -0-

DEFERRED I NFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Property taxes levied for subsequent year 95 ,847 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 6 ,282 49,25 1 9,826 
Comm itted 1 1 2 ,557 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 6 ,282 49,251 9,826 1 1 2 ,557 

TOTAL LIAB I LITI ES, 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND 
BALANCES $ 6,282 $ 1 45 , 098 $ 9,826 $ 1 1 2 , 557 
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Capital 
Revenue Projects Debt Service 

Bu i ld ing and Auto Theft Capital 
Zoning Enforcement Improvements Debt Service Total 

$ 1 00, 526 $ 24,820 $ 99,346 $ 2 , 1 1 2 $ 459,428 
41 , 1 39 

1 ,  1 8 1 1 ,  1 8 1 

$ 1 01 ,707 $ 24,820 $ 99,346 $ 2 , 1 1 2 $ 501 ,748 

$ 1 5 ,923 $ $ 50,221 $ $ 66, 1 44 
1 09 1 09 

1 6 ,032 -0- 50,221 -0- 66,253 

95,847 

1 ,  1 8 1 1 ,  1 8 1  
84,494 24,820 2 , 1 1 2  1 76,785 

49, 1 25 1 61 ,682 

85,675 24, 820 49, 1 25 2 , 1 1 2 339,648 

$ 1 01 ,707 $ 24,820 $ 99,346 $ 2 , 1 1 2  $ 501 ,748 ======== 
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Bath Charter Township 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

COMBIN ING STATEMENT O F  REVENUES,  EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 20 1 5  

S�ecial 
Pol ice Street Drug 

Train ing Lighting Forfeitu re 
REVENUES 

Licenses and perm its $ $ $ 
I ntergovernmental 2 ,394 
Charges for services 
I nterest 
Other 

Special assessments 95,847 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 2 ,394 95,847 -0-

EXPENDITURES 
Cu rrent 

General government 
P ubl ic safety 895 364 
Publ ic works 70,452 

Debt service 
Capital outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 895 70,452 364 

EXCESS OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1 ,499 25,395 (364) 

OTH ER F INANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

TOTAL OTHER F I NANCING SOURCES (USES) -0- -0- -0-

N ET CHANGE I N  FUND BALANCES 1 ,499 25,395 (364) 

Fund balances, beg inn ing of year 4 ,783 23, 856 1 0, 1 90 

Fund balances, end of year $ 6,282 $ 49,251 $ 9 ,826 
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Cemetery 

$ 

22,250 

325 

22,575 

3, 1 37 

3 , 1 37 

1 9,438 

(7, 500) 

(7,500) 

1 1 , 938 

1 00,6 1 9  

$ 1 1 2,557 



Capital 
Revenue Projects Debt Service 

Bu i ld ing and Auto Theft Capital 
Zon ing  Enforcement I mprovements Debt Service Total 

$ 1 82 , 573 $ $ $ $ 1 82 ,573  
2 ,394 

9 ,267 6 , 900 38,4 1 7 
4 4 

95 ,847 
325 

1 9 1 , 840 6 ,900 -0- 4 3 1 9 ,56 0  

3 , 1 37 
1 74 ,672 1 , 1 92 1 77 , 1 23 

70,452 
75, 992 75, 992 

1 07,947 1 07 ,947 

1 74 ,672 1 ,  1 92 1 07, 947 75,992 434,65 1 

1 7 , 1 68 5 ,708 ( 1 07,947) (75 ,988) ( 1 1 5 , 09 1 )  

44, 835 1 1 1 ,253 75,843 231 , 93 1  
(7, 500) 

44, 835 -0- 1 1 1 ,253 75 ,843 224,431 

62 , 003 5 ,708 3 ,306 (1 45) 1 09 ,34 0  

23,672 1 9 , 1 1 2  45,8 1 9 2,257 230, 308 

$ 85 ,675 $ 24,820 $ 49, 1 25 $ 2 , 1 1 2  $ 339 ,648 
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Bath Charter Township 

Agency Funds 

COMB IN ING STATEM ENT OF  ASSETS AND LIAB I LIT IES 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equ ivalents 

LIAB IL IT IES 
Due to other governmental u n its 

County 
Schools 
C l inton Area Transit System 

Due to ind ividuals and agencies 

TOTAL LIAB I LIT IES 

December 31 , 201 5 

Current Tax 
Col lections 

Trust and 
Agency Total 

$ 2 ,557,062 
=

$====3=, 0=
79= $ 2,560, 1 4 1  

$ 29,789 $ 1 ,41 8 $ 31 ,207 
2,485 ,31 6 2,485,31 6 

36 ,228 36,228 
5 ,729 1 ,661 7 ,390 

$ 2 ,557,062 $ 3 , 079 $ 2,560, 1 41 
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Bath Charter Townsh ip  

Component U nit Fund  

BALANCE SHEET - DOWNTOWN DEVELOP MENT AUTHORITY (DDA) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equ ivalents 

LIAB I LITI ES 

FUND BALANCE 
Unassigned 

December 3 1 , 201 5 

TOTAL LIAB I L IT IES AND FUND BALANCE 

$ 384 

$ 

384 

$ 384 

Note: Reconci l iation of the governmental fund balance sheet to the statement of net position for this 
component u n it is not requ i red as the fund balance was equal to the component un it's net position as of 
December 3 1 , 201 5 .  
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Bath Charter Township 

Component Un it Fund 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES , AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DOA) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

EXPENDITURES 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 201 5 

Commun ity and economic development 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

F u nd balance, beg inning of year 

F u nd balance, end of year 

$ 384 

384 

$ 384 

Note: Reconci l iation of the statement of revenues, expenditures , and changes in fund balance of this 
component un it's governmental fund to the statement of activities is not requ ired as the net change in 
fund balance was equal to the change i n  net position for the year ended December 31 , 20 1 5.  
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'a!Jiilif';1: 
. . . ·& co., P.c-

Certifi�d Pubtic Acc�untanti, 

r • .  

• 184 West CarletoriRoad . 
Hillsda!e, Michigan 49242 

· · Ph.one: 51/.439:9331 
Fax: 517.439.1894 

chbwcpa. com 

:r:NDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT ON INrERNJ\L CONTROL OVER EINANCIAJ;,.RERORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE A:No ·oTID;R MA.tTE� BASED ON AN AUDIT OF F':tNANcIAi STATEMENTS PERFORMED JN .. 

. • ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS · • • - ' • " ' , > '  \ 

·- f l  

· · ,·' >- ,  

To the Board ofTtuste�s . 
. .  

· Bath CharterTo"1D:shlp, Mi�hi�an 
�; • I 

. .  We. b.ave. audited; fu. accordan.ce with 19-e auditin� sjjrp.dards generally ;iccept�d m . the :l,Jnited: States of Amerfoa and fu� 
�tandarcis applicable . to finaricialaudits c.ontained·m Govern.merit A.urfiting Stcihdards issued by the Comptroller General of the . 

. United States, the financial stateme:rits of the govemmenkl aetivities, the busmess4ype activities, eflc]pnajor fund, an� the. 
aggregate re:tn.aipjng fund inf9:rritl!tibn .of.the Bath Chlilt(fr Towrishlp, Michigan as ofand fo;r the ye!ll" ended pec�mber. 31 ,  

·• . 2015, and the related
p.

otes.�9 the financial statements; ">"hich collecti".e.ly comprise the Balb Charter ToWnsbip' s b�ic fui.an�ial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated June l, 20 16. · · · · · · · · 

Iqte�nal �()ntrri1 oy!!r Fin�nci�liep�rtmg 
. . 

. . . . 
.. 

Jn planning and p�:i:forming .o� auclitofth(f�finimcial statyments; we comidered the Balli"Chartei .Township�s internal control . ·  

ovedin.ancial reporting (iniernai ;control) tp .deteimin:e . the aµdit pr_bcedutes that are 'appropriate . in. the citc�tan�es for the 
l, purpose of expressmg our · opinions,- on ' the financial statements, bu,t not. for the purpose ' of expressfug an opinion on the 

e:ffec;tiveness .ofthe Bath ChBrter Tow'nsbip' s  internal control: :Accprdingly, we do n:otexpres� an opinion on the effectiven�ss 
.ofthe Bath Charter Township1s fatemaJcontrol. . · ·.. ·· -

- - · 

, ' , ' , /I I 

. A defibie)-u:ytrf internalc()'rztrol. exists When .the design or operation ofa control does �otanow IJianagement �or eniployees; in , 
· the normal c,owse of performing their assigned function&; to prevent, ordetect imd correct, misstatements . on a timely ba.Sis, A . · · 

mater�cz( wepknes§ is a deficiency, o(a·combination of de:ficiep.cjes, iJi interilal .control �uch that.there . is a rea�onable possib.ii1fy - • .  

that a material misstatement o� the entity's finandal statements. will not be -prev�ntecfor detected and corrected on a timely , 
basis . .  A significant deficieney iS a deficiency, or a combination .of de:fic;ie�cies, in internal control that is less severe, than a 
material vve3.kness, yet D:nportant enough.to merit-attention by those charged with governance: . 

. 

o� coIJSideratio:ri _of internal control was;for the lli:nited purpose des�rlbed iilJ:he' first paragraph 
'oithis sedion and was '. �ot . .  

' ·  .designed.. t() identify all de:ficienCies in, internal contto}thafmight )Je·materjal weakneSses. oi;. sigruncant deficiencies. Giv_en . ,  .·. 

· ·thes(f limitations,· driring our audit we. did 11o't identify · any deficiencies in . .futeinal contro(that ·we consider . to be · material . .  · . ·  

i , weaknesses. IJow€;wer, n;iaterial w�aknesses may exisfth&t pave not been id.entilied> · .! ·. · .. . _ ··• ' < -. .. - · 
· -

Compliance and Other Matters · . . . ·  

- .· it s  • .  part. of obtainini. reasona�le assurari:ce. about �h(:ther tlie Bii.th Charter Towm;hip' s fimmcictl sta'.ie�ents , ar�r fr�e
'
. fro� . 

' - .  material misstate:lnent, we perforined tests . of its ¢on'lpliance w!th certain provisions of laws, regwatioiis, contracts, !!lld grant .· 
· ·, ·, agreements, n,oncompli;nice with. wliich could · have. a dh:eC:t . and materiaJ, effect · on ·the . .  d.i;:termJnatfon of fittarrcial statement 

amounts. However, proViding� an opinion on compliance with; those provisions Fas n,ot an objective of our audit; and . 
' accbrdingfy, wedo not eXpress such.an opinion .. The t�sults of our tests disciosed mi instance'ofnonc9mpliance that is reqwecf 
to be reporte!i under Gi:JvernmentAuditingStan,dards and is described in :the acc9P:tp<inying schedule of findings and questioned 

·. costs ,as item 20 1 5-:1 . · 

· · · · 

• •  , ' J  

Th.amas s. Condon ! DonnaJ. J!echt I St�phen WBishet:'! Jason M Wade .., . ' , - ' ' , , c 



· Bath. �barter Township'.s Response to Findings 
Bath Charter Township's respons� to the :findings identified in our �µdit is descnbed iii the aqco:ID.panyin:g schedtile offllidings 
and questioned costs. Bath Cliarter Township's  response was not subjected to the auditiilg procedures applied in the audit of 

, the'fmancial statements an� accordingly, we express no opinion on it. · · 

{ " , ' . - ' - ' 

Purpose of this Report . 

- � -
' ' ' ' 

. 
' ' 1  

' ' ' - , ' - ' ' ,_  -The purpose of this· report• is · solely tci describe the scope .of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opii;rion on .the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part ·of an audit performed in accoi�ce with Government Auditing St�ridards in conMdering the •entity's intemfil 
control and. compJiance. Accordingly, thiS poinmunication is not suitable for any other purpose. . 

. 

Hillsdale, Michigan . 

run:e 1 , 20 w 

· Certified Public Accountants 
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BATH CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 l, 2015 

·Finding: 201s-1 · Budget Overages 

.· Complfrznce Findini 

Requirement: Michigan Public Act 621 of1978; as am�nded, pro�de� that the Distrlct adopt format budgets for all applicable · .. 
General and Special Revenue Funds, and shall not incur eipendifures in excess of the amounts appropriated. PJ.so, the Public · 
Act requires amendments to be perforined prior to incumng additional expenditures. 

• ' • ' ' - I ' 

· C�ndition: As noted .in Note A of the required supplementary i:llf�rmation to the finaricial statements, various expenditures 
· exceeded the amounts appropriated. 

1 ' ; " , _ , ,  , ,  - ,  c ,- ' ', 

Cause: Thi.S .  condition is a reslilt of not adequately monitoring budgeted and actual e�enditures near the end of the year, in . 
· order to propel"ly amend the budget. 

· · · · 

Effect: The TOwnship ha:d �tances ofoudgetary nonco.mpliance relative to State l�w. 
' ' ' -' ' 

Recommendation: The Township �hould, closely monitpr expenditures' throughout.the year in.ord,er to recogniz:� expenditure ; 
· overruns in a timely fashion anci amend the l:mdget as necessary. 

· · ·· 

-' 50 -

",) ' ' 



Paula Clark 
Supervisor 

Kathleen McQueen 
Clerk 

JeffGarrity 
Treasurer 

DanWietecha 
Superintendent 

June 1J 2016 

Ryan Fewins-Bliss 
Trustee 

Cindy Cronk 
Trustee 

Walter Pett 
Trustee 

Leon Puttler 
Trustee 

Management has discussed this deficiency atid reviewed budget and purcha5ing polides with departtrient heads. 

Management will closelyrnonitor expenditures throughout the year to ensure timely budget amendments to avoid 
overages. Management will also closely rrtom�qr �nditure$ which cover multiple yean; to ensure that the costs are 
allocated to the appropriate years. 

· · 

On behalf of Bath CharterTown5hip, 

9, A- '  �lt>" ( - JL /�{ � 
Dan Wietecha 
Superintendent 

14480 Webster Road * P.O. Box 147 * Ba.th, MI 48808 
5.17'"64:1'-6728 * Fax: 517�641"4170 
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June 1 ,  201 6  

Board o f  Trustees 
Bath Charter Township, Michigan 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate rema:illing fund information of Bath Charter Township for the year ended December 31 , 20 15 .  Professional 
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards 
(and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A- 1:3 3), as well as certain information related to. the 
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information . in our letter to you dated June 1 , 2Q 16. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to . our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies 
used by Bath Charter Township are described in Note A to · the financial statements. No new accounting policies were 
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2015.  We noted no transactions entered into by Bath 
Ch<Uter Township.during th� year for whkh there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions 
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

· 

Accounting estimates are an integral · part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about ruture events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive. because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the 
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) 
affecting the Bath .Charter Township's financial statements were: .  

Management' s  estimate pf the useful lives of depreciable · capital assets is based on the length of time it is 
believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit in the future. We evaluated the key factors 
and assumptions used to develop ·the estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets in detetmining 
that it is reasonable in relation to the finanCial statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on current hourly rates and policies 
regarding payment of sick and vacatiOn banks. 

Tue disclosure of net pension liability and the related deferred inflowsfoutflows
. 
in Note F to the financial 

. 

statements which describes the Township's  allocation of the State of Michigan's  defined pension plan. 

The financial statement. disclosures are neutral, co!1sistent, and clear. 

Difficu,f ties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in pe�forming and completing our audit. 

Corrected and. Uncorrected Mis classifications 
' - ( f 

Professional standards require u,s to accumulate all known and likely misdassifications identified . during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and .communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all 
such inisclassifications. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected. by 
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion uriit' s fuiancial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Thornas S. / Donna J · Hecht I I kson M Wade 



.Disagreements with Management 
For pil:rpose� of this letter, a disagreement with managementis a firianciitl accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether 
or :not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significanito the financial statements or the 1auditor' s report. We are pleased . 
to report that no such dis�greementS arose during .the course of our apdit� · · · 

. Management Representations 
· . We have requested certain representations from management that are included in tlie man,agement representation letter dated 

June l, 2016. 
· · 

Manag�ment Consultations "1Yith Ot/:ler Independent Ar;countants 
In Some ca,ses, manageID.ent may decide u; consult with other acpountan� about auditing i:md itccol1nting ma�rs, similar to 
obtailling a "second tjpinion" on certain . situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to .Bath 

·. Charter '.f o'wnship' s financial statements 1 or a determimttion of the type of auditor' s  opinion that may be expressed on those 
' statements, OUr professional stanclards require the consulting accountant to check with US JO d�feJinine thatthe'. COllSilJ.tant has 

all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such corisultations with other accountants. .  
. · · 

. .  

Other Audit Findings or1ssues 
We generally discuss a vari�ty of matters, including .the application of accounting principles and audifug standards, with 
.management each ye!ll' prior to �rete:ntion: as Bath Charter Towruihip's auditors. ·However, these disc;ussions occurred in the . 
:o.ormal cdurse of our professional relati01;iship . and our responses were n6ta condition to our-retention'. 

· · 

' ' . . · ,  ,- ' 

Other Matters 
. We applied certain �ited procedures to the budgetary comparison Schedules and the schedules of funain_g progress anc:f 
employer ·contributions, which are (is) required supplementary infon:Ilation· (RSJ) that supplements the basic financi8.l · 

' statements. Our procedures .consisted of mquiries of management regarding the . methodS of preparing :the information and 
com�aring tb.e · information for cop.si�tency with m�gement' s responses to our inquiries, thf( basic. financial statements, and 

· · other knowledge we obtained during our audit ofthe basic financial .statements. We did hot audit the RSI and do not express 
an: opinion or provide any. assurance on the RSI. 

· · · · ·  · · · 

We were engaged to tepqrt on co�bining s;tatements, which accompany the financial . statements but are not RSI. _With 
respect to 1:his supplement3fY information, . we , made certain inquiries of managemtmt and . evaluated the form, . coritent, and 
methods of preparing the information to determine that the 'information complies with accounting principles · generally . 
accepted in the . United States of 'America, the method, .of preparing it has il.ot changed from the pnor perio\l, and the 
information iS appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the fuiancial statements. We compared and reconciled .  the 
supplementary informatiori:tb the underlying accounting records :used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial · 

· statements themselves. · · 

· · · 

Restriction on Use 

Th,is ifilo�tion is iritenCJed solely for the use " ofthe Board �f Trustees_ and management of Bath. Charter Township and. is not 
intended to be, aird·should n9t be, used by anyone other than these speCified p�es. · · · 

. .  
' '  
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